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oVerVIew

during a year in which Peak Resources Limited 
successfully listed on australian securities 
exchange a number of important corporate  
and operational goals have been achieved.

the 2007 financial year has provided a base  
for the ongoing development of the company. 
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The acquisition of all the issued shares of PRL Limited was 
the trigger for a major transformation of Peak Resources 
Limited (formerly Acquisitor Limited).  Shareholders of Peak 
Resources Limited approved the acquisition of PRL on 27th 
of August 2006 in which Peak issued 8,400,000 shares to PRL 
shareholders in consideration.  

At acquisition PRL held, or held the rights to, the exploration 
portfolio currently held by the Company.  Contemporaneously 
with this transaction the shareholders of Peak Resources elected 
a new board of directors.

On 1 September 2006 Peak Resources lodged with ASIC 
a prospectus to raise up to $4m by the issue of 20m ordinary 
shares at an issue price of $0.20 each.  This issue was 

subsequently closed off having raised $3.5m with the Company 
then listing on the Australian Securities Exchange Limited on 29 
November 2006.

As set out in the September 2006 prospectus the Company 
undertook a rights issue of options on the basis of one option 
for every two shares held in the Company at the record date.  
The issue was strongly supported by shareholders with an 82% 
take-up.

Since listing on ASX Peak Resources has aggressively pursued 
the exploration and evaluation of the Company’s asset portfolio 
in accordance with its stated intentions.  Work programmes 
have been undertaken on all key asset groups providing a solid 
foundation for the Company as it moves into 2008

corPorAte 

August 2006

change of 
company 

name from 
acquisitor to 

Peak Resources 
Limited

August 2006

new board 
of directors 
appointed

sEPtEMBER 2006

Lodgement of 
prospectus and 
application for 
quotation on 

asX

OCtOBER 2006

commencement  
of initial 

exploration 
programme  
at menzies

NOVEMBER 2006

Listing
on asX

DECEMBER 2006

second menzies 
exploration 

drilling 
programme

MARCH 2007

third exploration 
drilling 

programme

MARCH 2007

initial 
exploration 
programme 

on the Group’s 
Goldfields 

uranium Project

MARCH 2007

options issue

APRIL 2007

initial doolgunna 
exploration 
commenced

August 2006

acquisition  
of PRL Limited

significant developments  
during the year are listed below: 
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uranium Projects
Cosmo
Lake Darlot
Cogla Downs
Gabyon

nickel Projects
Yellowdine
Lake Ballard 

Gold Projects
Doolgunna
Peak Hill
Menzies

Base Metal Project

Ashburton

Peak Resources:   
Project locations, Western Australia
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Peak has extensive land holding within Western 
Australia much of which lies within areas that have 
been subject to minimal previous exploration.  
The Company’s asset base also contains a number 
of “brown field” tenement holdings, such as 
Menzies and Peak Hill West where Peak Resources 
is focusing on specific targets that have been left 
largely untapped by earlier exploration.

Peak resources prime operational focus has been the 
establishment of exploration programmes designed to 
develop the Company’s asset base delivering growth 
over coming years.  

In a seven month period since listing on ASX the Company 
has made significant progress in advancing exploration on 
a broad front.  Work carried out during the 2007 financial 
year has established the foundation for exploration to be 
undertaken in the coming year.

The Company commenced an aggressive exploration 
programme in October with an RC drilling programme at 
the Menzies Project.  The programme was undertaken to 
test extensions to mineralisation at the CSR prospect and at 
Jenny Venn. This was soon followed by deep RC drilling at 
the northern end of the Granny Venn Pit in late December.  
Further programmes were undertaken at Jenny Venn and 
CSR between February and April.  The February programme 
included the first exploration diamond holes to be completed 
within the project area.

The Company’s focus then shifted from Menzies to the 
Uranium portfolio, with initial reconnaissance and sampling 
work completed on two of the four project areas.

An extensive aeromagnetic survey of the Doolgunna project 
was carried out in February with field work commencing on 
the project during the second half of April.  Due to the minimal 
previous ground activity in the region work on the project 
initially comprised “grass-roots” style regional reconnaissance 
programmes, including broad-spaced soil geochemistry.  
This programme was followed up by scout RAB drilling which 
commenced in late June.

A review of geological data has been undertaken on all 
projects during the year as a precursor to field activities.   
In addition, protocols and systems have been established 
to address environmental and governmental agency 
requirements.  Administrative requirements associated  
with work programme approval for Western Australian based 
projects continue to occupy a significant amount of time  
and expense. 

Peak has extensive land holding within Western Australia 
much of which lies within areas that have been subject to 
minimal previous exploration.  The Company’s asset base 
also contains a number of “brown field” tenement holdings, 
such as Menzies and Peak Hill West where Peak Resources 
is focusing on specific targets that have been left largely 
untapped by earlier exploration.

Finally, during the year the Company has established a 
capacity to move into and explore some of the more remote 
areas of Western Australia in a cost effective manner with 
a high level of self reliance and flexibility. This will assist 
Peak Resources in the coming year as it look to advance 
development of existing projects within the Company’s 
exploration portfolio as well as seek out new opportunities  
to add to the value of the Company.

oVerVIew 

Image: Peak Resources quad bikes being unloaded  
for regional soil sampling programme
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PeaK Hill ProJeCts

dooLGunnA  
(Peak ResouRces 100%)

The Doolgunna Project is located approximately 160km 
north of Meekatharra in Western Australia. Doolgunna 
consists of an extensive land holding in an under-explored 
prospective tenement group within a region that has 
recently provided encouraging gold exploration results.

Limited previous work on the tenements meant that 
exploration programmes needed to be developed on a green-
fields exploration basis. Work programmes were developed 
from aerial magnetic data. Initial scout drilling work programmes 

were submitted for the project 
in February 2007 with the 
programmes approved in May 
enabling drilling to commence 
in late June. 

The Company commissioned 
an aeromagnetic survey 
over the Doolgunna Project, 
which was completed during 
February.  This survey was 

been designed to infill gaps 
from recently obtained highly 

detailed aeromagnetic surveys previously flown by Barrick 
Gold, Rio Tinto Exploration, Western Mining & Sipa Resources.  
The highly detailed images have allowed Peak Resources to 
focus its exploration programme more effectively within parts 
of the mineralised corridor as identified to the south-west of the 
tenement group.

Low ground impact field activities commenced at Doolgunna 
during April with the Company mobilising a remote area 
field camp to Doolgunna and commencing a regional soil 
geochemistry programme over much of the Doolgunna 
tenements E52/1838, E52/1650 and E52/1661.  

 This programme was concluded in early June after delays 
caused by unseasonable rains (125mm) during late April.  Areas 
of gold anomalism identified by this work will be further explored 
utilising infill geochemical sampling and reconnaissance drilling.

Prior to commencing ground work at Doolgunna, Peak 
Resources undertook a number of high level environmental 
reviews of the project area and prepared a guide for Company 
employees and contractors with a view to minimising any 
potential disturbance within the exploration area.

A programme of approximately 10,000 metres of RAB & Aircore 
drilling was carried out over two campaigns the first commencing in 
late June/early July and early September 2007.  

Detailed geological mapping was completed within the 
mineralised corridor.  The mapping has been undertaken to increase 
Peak’s geological understanding of the area, compliment the 
geochemistry completed to date and most importantly allow for more 
effective targeting.  

Results from early stage programmes have identified a number of 
areas of anomalism and provided encouragement to the exploration 
team.  Results, which are incomplete, are highlighting areas of 
interest within the large tenement holding.  These areas will become 
the focus of further exploration within the region during 2008.
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Doolgunna Project Areial Magnetic Image

Doolgunna soil samples waiting 
transport to assay lab. 

east shed Well
14m@10.4g/t Au

old Highway
48m@5.9g/t Au



Gold bearing fluid focus

• Mineralised Feeder Systems
• Numerous Structural Targets
• Prospective Host Rock
• Under Explored

Cow Hole Bore
4m@7.43g/t Au

Mafic Wedge

Potential Fluid Pathway

Regional Bounding Faults

0km 6km 12km

Structural and Fluid mix targets 

• Drilling completed by Rio Tinto 
• Not sampled for gold by Rio Tinto 
•  RC00PHL012 Re-sampled by Peak returns  

10 metres @ 0.6 g/t Au, 0.54% Cu,  
+1.0 % Zn from 80m

rC Hole
Rio Diamond Exploration

Faulted / Folded Dilatational Zone
Open Fluid Flow Trap

Structurally Controlled Uranium 
Radiometrics Anomaly

Anticlinal Hinge in Apex  
of Mafic Wedge

Rotated High-Magnetic 
Unit in Shear Zone

Sheared Anticlinal Hinge

the highly detailed images from the 
aeromagnetic survey of doolgunna have 
allowed Peak resources to focus its 
exploration programme more effectively within 
parts of the mineralised corridor as identified 
to the south-west of the tenement group.

Doolgunna Project Areial Magnetic Image
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PeAk hILL west  
(Peak ResouRces eaRninG 70%)

The Peak Hill West Project covers tenements 
within the Peak Resources/Goldstar Resources 
Farm-in agreement under which Peak Resources 
is earning up to a 70% interest in the tenement 
package.  The project is located approximately 
150km north north-east of Meekatharra in central 
Western Australia.

The Project currently has over 4,000 drill holes, 
meaning selective data compilations have had 
to be completed in order to conduct geological 
assessment of the area prior to the commencement 
of RC drilling.  A review of the Peak Hill West Project 
was undertaken during the later part of the 2007 
financial year.

A number of high priority gold targets have 
been identified, including the Jubilee Extended 
and the Murphy Creek Line, which are believed 
to be extensions or parallel structures to the gold 
mineralisation previously mined at the Jubilee and 
the gold resource identified by Gleneagle at Durack 
respectively.  Additional target areas have been 
generated by Peak Resources as a result of work 
undertaken (Robinson Range & Peak Mine Sequence 
Prospects) which the Company hopes to test during 
a drilling programme planned for the 2008 year. 

In addition, Peak is also looking at a work 
programme that would target potential repetitions 
of lodes mined at the closed Mt Pleasant open cut 
which may exist beneath and in close proximity to the 
former open pit.

The Murphy Creek sub-area contains a number of 
significant drill intersections from earlier exploration 
along strike and to the west of the Durack gold 
resource.  The 4 km structural corridor that straddles 
the tenements is interpreted to be an extension of 
the host lithology and structure for the Durack gold 
deposit (Gleneagle Gold).  Ongoing reviews have 
highlighted highly prospective gold targets within that 
area which are scheduled to be tested during the first 
half of 2008 financial year.

A number of high priority gold targets have been 

identified, including the Jubilee Extended and the 

Murphy Creek Line, which are believed to be extensions 

or parallel structures to the gold mineralisation 

previously mined at the Jubilee and the gold resource 

identified by Gleneagle at Durack respectively. 
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Prospect locations - Peak Hill West
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Murphy Creek Mineralisation and Alteration Mapping (Peak Hill West Project)

The Murphy Creek sub-area contains a number of 
significant drill intersections from earlier exploration 
along strike and to the west of the Durack gold 
resource.  The 4 km structural corridor that straddles 
the tenements is interpreted to be an extension of 
the host lithology and structure for the Durack gold 
deposit (Gleneagle Gold).
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MenZIes ProJect
(Peak ResouRces 100%)

The Menzies Project is located approximately 5kms 
north east of the town of Menzies which is approximately 
120kms north of Kalgoorlie in the eastern goldfields of 
Western Australia.

Within the Menzies Goldfield the Company acquired a 
100% interest in a contiguous group of tenements covering 
in excess of 100km².  Targets at Menzies are in the nature 
of high grade gold occurrences and those associated with 
previous mining areas, such as the Granny Venn Gold Mine 
(where an estimated 371,000t were mined at an average 
grade of 3.54 g/t Au for approximately 42,200 troy ounces of 
gold). 

The Company has pursued a strategy aimed at examining 
the potential for near term production from within existing 
pits and adjacent areas.  To date exploration has provided 
sufficient encouragement warranting additional investigation 
into 2008.  Programmes following up on 2007 work are 
scheduled to commence towards the start of the December 
quarter and are aimed at providing additional data to enabling 
the Company to fully assess the potential of the project for 
short term development.

During 2007 Peak has undertaken three drilling campaigns 
on the Menzies Gold Project.  The initial programme focused 
on both the CSR Zone and Jenny Venn Prospect, the second 
on depth extensions to the Granny Venn mineralisation and 
the third, comprising both RC and diamond drilling, looked at 
the geological structure and scope of mineralisation at CSR 
and Jenny Venn.

In addition to this on ground activity, work has been 
undertaken on modelling the mineralisation associated 
with the Granny Venn Pit.  Modelling work has facilitated 
interpretive analysis of mineralised trends.

This new work carried out by Peak has assisted in the 
identification of new drill targets to the north west of the 
Granny Venn Pit.  More recently, discussions with previous 
explorers has provided some support to this interpretation 
of offset mineralisation.  If correct, this has the potential to 
significantly augment sources of (gold) mineralised material 
from below the Granny Venn pit as well as the nearby CSR 
Zone and Jenny Venn Prospects. Granny Venn Open Pit at completion of mining - looking North

MenZies ProJeCts

Granny Venn Open Pit 
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Mineralised porphyry within ultramafics - Granny Venn Open Pit  
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Granny Venn Pit 
View of wire frame model of mineralisation looking at the Granny Venn Pit from the South West
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JennY Venn ProsPect

Peak’s initial drilling programme was conducted in 
October 2006 to follow up high grade intersections from 
RAB and RC by earlier explorers.  The results from this 
programme provided encouragement that the Jenny 
Venn Prospect had the potential to provide a modest 
but important addition to mineralised material within the 
Project.  

Four metre composites from RC drilling returned best results 
of:
• 4m @ 32.64 g/t  Au 
• 8m @ 6.16 g/t Au EOH (including: 4m @ 11.29 g/t Au).

These returned results are consistent with coarse gold 
(nuggety) vein systems that are of a high grade nature.

The next phase of the programme, which was undertaken 
between February and March, involved further RC drilling 
together with a limited diamond drilling programme.

Reinterpretation of the Jenny Venn Prospect was completed 
by Peak following structural logging of diamond core and the 
return of assay data for the prospect in the March quarter.  
Information gained from logging confirmed that the initial 
drilling was directed down dip (or plunge) of the mineralised 
veins and therefore was not representative of the true nature 
of the mineralisation. 

Diamond drilling at Jenny Venn has concluded that 
mineralisation is hosted by a stacked array of shallow dipping 
quartz veins dipping towards 025-040 degrees that are hosted 
within a fault zone, interpreted to be striking WNW-ESE.  

Further RC drilling, scheduled to be undertaken in the 
December quarter 2007, is required to the northwest and 
southeast along the fault zone to define the strike extents of 
the high-grade quartz-sulphide veins.

The high grade and shallow nature of mineralisation 
at Jenny Venn provides the Company with the prospect 
of additional high grade material to augment any future 
development of the former Granny Venn Pit.

csr Zone ProsPect

During October 2006 Peak Resources completed 23 RC 
holes at its CSR Zone.  Drilling was designed to confirm 
previous intersected mineralization.  CSR Zone, is located 
in between the Granny Venn and Auntie Nellie Pits and 
was originally drilled by Colonial Sugar Refineries in the 
1980s.  

Peak initiated a drilling program to define the scope and 
size of the CSR and subsequent drilling and to increase the 
strike length of the mineralisation.  Drilling confirmed the 
presence of a high-grade mineralized pod over 20 metres in 
strike with best results of:
• 4m at 31.92 g/t Au from 24 m; and 
• 4m @ 3.52 g/t Au from 20 m

Further diamond drilling was conducted to investigate the 
style and structural nature of the mineralization at CSR to 
assess its economic potential.  Diamond drilling returned 
a best result of 8 metres @ 3.57g/t from 24 metres in hole 
MN0066D.

Diamond drilling also confirmed the high grade “nuggetty” 
nature of the mineralisation but discounted the potential for 
significant strike extensions beyond that currently outlined.  
No further drilling is planned for CSR, with the drilling 
completed to date to be modelled and a JORC compliant 
resource estimate calculation being the next phase to be 
undertaken.

CSR is seen as a strategically important prospect in that 
it is a shallow small high grade prospect which has the 
potential to provide supplementary mineralised material in any 
development of the Menzies project. 

MenZies ProJeCts

The high grade and shallow nature of 
mineralisation at Jenny Venn provides the 
Company with the prospect of additional 
high grade material to augment any future 
development of the former Granny Venn Pit.
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Regional radiometrics data has identified a broad zone of 
anomalous uranium in sediments that is approximately 7 km long 
x 2.4 km wide.  Peak completed a sample traverse over part of 
the anomaly in March to verify the radiometrics and delineate 
background U3O8 within the Prospect.

 During the sampling programme, the uranium rich mineral 
carnotite was identified in a shallow calcrete pit (< 1 metre deep) 
located on the edge of Lake Darlot.

Sample results from grab sampling within the shallow pit has 
returned highly encouraging results of 147 and 384 ppm U3O8 
with soil sampling returning a peak result of 186 ppm U3O8.

Work Programmes have been prepared for the Lake Darlot, 
Cosmo and Cogla Downs Prospects.  Programmes involve 
first pass RAB drilling of identified targets with the Lake Darlot 
programme, having been approved, is to be undertaken in the 
December quarter of the 2008 financial year.  Programmes at 
Cogla and Cosmo are subject to grant and regulatory approval.

Upcoming programmes planned for 2008 are considered 
pivotal in the assessment of the immediate future uranium 
projects and the assessment of the value of those projects to 
the Company.  Early results have highlighted the potential of 
at least the Lake Darlot Prospect.  This potential will be further 
investigated in the coming year.

GoLdFIeLds urAnIuM ProJects
(Peak ResouRces 100%)

GoldFields uraniuM ProJeCts

The Goldfields Uranium Project comprises four early 
stage Exploration Licences running across the Midwest of 
Western Australia.  The Prospects were selected based upon 
preliminary work undertaken in the 1970’s by the CSIRO.  
Of the four licences three have now been granted with the 
fourth, Cogla Downs, being subject to native title clearances 
associated with a number of differing claimant parties.  Grant 
is anticipated following clearance of this matter. 

Work on the projects undertaken during the year largely 
comprised initial scout activities.  Work to date has primarily 
focused on the Company’s Lake Darlot tenement with preliminary 
work being undertaken at Cogla Downs in preparation for grant of 
the Licence. 

In May Peak Resources reported highly encouraging results 
from the Company’s initial work programme at Lake Darlot.

The Lake Darlot Prospect comprises broad calcareous 
sedimentary deposits up to 10 metres thick at the margins of Lake 
Darlot.  The calcareous sediments have been identified as being 
enriched in uranium by precipitation from drainage inflows from 
nearby catchments that host “hot” granites (high uranium levels).

Uranium Project locations, Western Australia
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In May Peak Resources reported highly 
encouraging results from the Company’s 
initial work programme at Lake Darlot.  
The Prospect comprises broad calcareous 
sedimentary deposits up to 10 metres thick 
at the margins of Lake Darlot.  



siGniFiCant results – laKe darlot

saMPle tYPe saMPle nuMBer nortH east Grid (u3o8 PPM) CoMMents

Grab Sample 2044861 363909 6929267 MGA94_51 33.72 Shallow Calcrete Pit

Grab Sample 2044862 363909 6929267 MGA94_51 146.79 Shallow Calcrete Pit

Grab Sample 2044863 363909 6929267 MGA94_51 384.35 Shallow Calcrete Pit

Soil 2044850 363544 6929600 MGA94_51 31.72 Surface Soil Sample

Soil 2044851 363650 6929607 MGA94_51 61.9 Surface Soil Sample

Soil 2044852 363742 6929611 MGA94_51 48.93 Surface Soil Sample

Soil 2044853 363849 6929617 MGA94_51 185.69 Surface Soil Sample

Soil 2044854 363940 6929620 MGA94_51 54.59 Surface Soil Sample

Uranium Radiometrics Anomalies contained encouraging 
results of 147 and 384 ppm U3O8, with soil sampling results  

of 186 ppm U3O8.  

Shallow Calcrete Pit – Lake Darlot 

Uranium samples 
identifying a soil traverse

17
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Uranium Radiometrics & Sampling Traverse – Lake Darlot 
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2008  
eXPLorAtIon 
ProGrAMMe 

The information in this report that relates to Exploration Results is based on information compiled and/or reviewed by Kell Nielsen who is a Member of The Australasian 
Institute of Mining and Metallurgy. Kell Nielsen is the Technical Director of the Company. He has sufficient experience which is relevant to the style of mineralisation and 
type of deposit under consideration and to the activity which he is undertaking to qualify as a Competent Person as defined in the 2004 Edition of the ‘Australasian Code 
for Reporting of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves”.  Kell Nielsen consents to the inclusion in the report of the matters based on his information in 
the form and context in which it appears.

GoLdFIeLds urAnIuM ProJects 
The Goldfields Uranium Projects are to be the subject of a 
number of exploration programmes during the year which are to 
follow up on encouraging results that have been provided from 
the exploration activity during 2007.

AshBurton
Early stage exploration programmes including regional geo-
chemical and gravity surveys are to be undertaken at Ashburton.  
These programmes will advance our understanding of this 
extensive land package. 

Having commenced programmes on  
the majority of major projects (other than 
Ashburton) during the 2007 financial 
year Peak Resources intends to advance 
exploration across its exploration portfolio.

dooLGunnA ProJect
In the first part of the 2007/08 financial year the Company is 
returning its focus to the Doolgunna Project completing the RAB 
drilling and is to assess the previously identified target areas.  
Exploration will then continue on the more prospective areas 
within the project highlighted from the initial ground activity with 
infill exploration activity.

PeAk hILL west
The Company is looking to advance exploration in the Peak 
Hill West Project area and has prepared work programmes 
incorporating RC drilling on two advanced targets within the 
Murphy’s Creek and Jubilee Extended prospects.  Additionally 
targets have been identified for a RAB drill programme at the 
Robinsons Range prospect in the southwest of the project area.

MenZIes ProJect
Work at Menzies, planned for the first half of the year, is to 
pursue the prospective areas identified from the 2007 exploration 
programme.  Results from exploration to be undertaken in the first 
half of 2008 will have a significant bearing on how the Company 
proceeds with the Menzies Project development during the 
balance of the year.  A positive result has the potential to trigger  
a move through to rapid development of target areas.
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2007
teneMent 
sheduLe 

ProJeCt teneMent % status arranGeMent/CoMMent

Menzies L 29/61 100 Granted 

Menzies ML 29/189 100 Granted 

Menzies PL 29/2047 100 Application MLA Conversion

Menzies PL 29/2048 100 Application MLA Conversion

Menzies PL 29/2049 100 Application MLA Conversion

Menzies PL 29/2050 100 Application MLA Conversion

Menzies PL 29/2051 100 Application MLA Conversion

Menzies PL 29/2052 100 Application MLA Conversion

Menzies PL 29/2053 100 Application MLA Conversion

Menzies PL 29/2054 100 Application MLA Conversion

Menzies PL 29/2055 100 Application MLA Conversion

Menzies PL 29/2056 100 Application MLA Conversion

Menzies PL 29/2057 100 Application MLA Conversion

Ballard PL 29/1726 100 Granted 

Ballard PL 29/1727 100 Granted 

Ballard PL 29/1787 100 Granted 

Ballard PL 29/1844 100 Granted 

Doolgunna EL 52/1650 100 Granted 100% Peak Hill Gold Mines NL (wholly owned Sub)

Doolgunna EL 52/1661 100 Granted 100% Peak Hill Gold Mines NL (wholly owned Sub)

Doolgunna EL 52/1838 100 Granted 100% Peak Hill Gold Mines NL (wholly owned Sub)

Peak Hill East EL51/1095 100 Granted 100% Peak Hill Gold Mines NL (wholly owned Sub)

Peak Hill East EL51/1111 40 Granted Joint Venture – 40% Redpalm Pty Ltd (100% sub)  
     60% Meteoric Resources NL 

Peak Hill East E52/1663 100 Granted 100% Peak Hill Gold Mines NL (wholly owned Sub)

Peak Hill East EL52/1621 100 Granted 100% Peak Hill Gold Mines NL (wholly owned Sub)

Peak Hill West EL 52/1727 5 Granted Farmin with Goldstar earning 70% - held by Goldstar  
     Resources NL and Murchison Resource Pty Ltd

Peak Hill West ML 52/548 5 Granted Farmin with Goldstar earning 70% - held by Goldstar  
     Resources NL and Murchison Resource Pty Ltd

Peak Hill West ML 52/588 5 Granted Farmin with Goldstar earning 70% - held by Goldstar  
     Resources NL and Murchison Resource Pty Ltd

Peak Hill West PL 52/990 5 Granted Farmin with Goldstar earning 70% - held by Goldstar  
     Resources NL and Murchison Resource Pty Ltd

Peak Hill West PL 52/991 5 Granted Farmin with Goldstar earning 70% - held by Goldstar  
     Resources NL and Murchison Resource Pty Ltd

Ashburton EL 08/1239 100 Granted 

Ashburton EL 08/1240 100 Granted 

GUP - Gabyon  EL 59/1213 100 Granted 

GUP Cosmo EL 38/1822 100 Granted 

GUP – Lake Darlot EL 37/832 100 Granted 

GUP – Cogla ELA 37/601 100 Application 

Yellowdine ELA 77/1112  Application Option to acquire from Avko P/L

Unless otherwise stated tenements 100% are held by or on behalf of Peak Resources Limited.
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corPorAte 
GoVernAnce 
PoLIcIes 

The ASX Listing Rules require companies to disclose in their annual reports whether their corporate 
governance practices follow the ASX Corporate Governance Council’s 10 Principles of Good Corporate 
Governance and Best Practice Recommendations (“ASX Principles”) on an “if not why not” basis.

Details of Peak Resources compliance with ASX Principles and its main corporate governance practices for the year 
ended 30 June 2007 are disclosed in this statement.  At the date of the report, Peak Resources considers that its 
corporate governance practices substantially comply with the ASX Principles.  A summary of the compliance position 
appears in this report.

BoaRd oF diRectoRs

The Board is responsible for all matters relating to the policies, management, operations and objectives  
of the Company.  This generally includes the following:
• To set the policies and strategic direction of the company;
• To monitor the performance of the company. The board and management;
• To approve strategic commitments, work programmes and budgets;
• To report to shareholders;
• To take responsibility for corporate governance. 

aRticLe i. coRPoRate GoveRnance statement

Peak Resources is committed to implementing the highest practical standards of corporate governance.  
The Company is pleased to advise that its practices are consistent with the ASX Corporate Governance 
Council’s Principles of Good Corporate Governance and Best Practice Recommendations. 

The overriding objective of the corporate governance practices adopted by the company is to maintain and  
increase shareholder value in the company within an appropriate framework that protects the rights and interests  
of shareholders and ensures the company and its controlled entities are properly managed. This objective is 
supported by an organisation-wide commitment to the highest standards of legislative compliance and financial  
and ethical behaviour.

A summary of how the company complies with the ASX Corporate Governance Council’s Principles of Good Corporate 
Governance and Best Practice Recommendations is included below. The various charters and policies are all available 
on the Peak Resources web site: www.peakresources.com.au.

Section 1.01 

Section 1.02 ASX Principle Section 1.03 Section 1.04 NReference/Comment 
  status

Principle 1  lay solid foundation for management oversight

1.1	 	

Formalise	and	disclose	the	
functions	reserved	to	the	
Board	and	those	delegated	to	

management.

The Board has adopted a Corporate Governance policy which 
establishes the role of the Board and its relationship with 
management. The Board’s role is to govern the Company rather 
than to manage it. In governing the Company, the Director’s 
must act in the best interests of the Company as a whole. It 
is the role of senior management to manage the Company in 
accordance with the direction and delegations of the Board. The 
functions and responsibilities of the Board and management 
are consistent with ASX Principle 1. A copy of the Corporate 
Governance policy is posted on the Company’s website.

Complying
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2.2   The chairman should be an 
independent director.

The Chairman, Mr P D Price has been Chairman of the 
Company since August 2006 and was, at the date of his 
appointment and continues to be, independent. 

Complying

2.1	 	A	majority	of	the	Board	should	
be	independent	directors.

The composition of the Peak Resources complies with 
practices recommended as a majority of the directors are 
Non-Executives. Directors are appointed on the specific skills 
required by the Company and on the independence of their 
decision-making and judgement. The current Board comprising 
three Non-Executive Directors and two Executive Directors is 
appropriate for the size of the company.

Complying

2.3	 	The	roles	of	the	chairman	
and	the	chief	executive	officer	
(or	equivalent)	should	not	
be	exercised	by	the	same	
individual.

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (or 
equivalent) are held by separate persons.

Complying

2.4	 	The	Board	should	establish	a	
nomination	committee.

The Board as a whole serves as the Nomination Committee. 
The current members of the Nomination Committee are Non-
Executive Directors’, Mr P D Price, Mr R D Foster Mr N Money 
and Executive Directors’ Mr M W Maine and Mr K I Nielsen.

Complying

2.5	 	Provide	the	information	
indicated	in	the	ASX	Guidance	
Note	9A	to	reporting	on		
principle	2.

The following information is set out in the Company’s annual 
report:
• The skills and experience of Directors.
•  The Directors considered by the Board to constitute 

independent Directors and the Company’s materiality 
thresholds.

•  A statement regarding Director’s ability to take independent 
professional advise at the expense of the Company.

•  The term of office held by each Director in office at the date 
of the report.

•  The names of members of the Company’s committees and 
their attendance at committee meetings. 

Complying

3.1	 	Establish	a	code	of	conduct	to	
guide	the	directors,	the	chief	
executive	officer	(or	equivalent)	
and	any	other	key	executives	
as	to	the	practices	necessary	
to	maintain	confidence	in	the	
company’s	integrity	and	the	
responsibility	and	accountability	
of	individuals	for	reporting	and	
investigating	reports	of	unethical	
practices.

The composition of the Peak Resources complies with practices 
recommended as a majority of the directors are Non-Executives. 
Directors are appointed on the specific skills required by the 
Company and on the independence of their decision-making and 
judgement. The current Board comprising three Non-Executive 
Directors and two Executive Directors is appropriate for the size of 
the company.

Complying

3.2	 	Disclose	the	policy	concerning	
trading	in	company	securities	
by	directors	officers	and	
employees.

The Company has adopted a Securities Trading Policy which 
can be viewed on its website.

Complying

corPorAte GoVernAnce PoLIcIes (continued)

Principle 2  structure the Board to add value

Principle 3 Promote ethical and responsible decision-making



23

4.1	 	Require	the	chief	executive	
officer	(or	equivalent)	and	the	
chief	financial	officer	to	state	
in	writing	to	the	Board	that	the	
company’s	financial	reports	
present	a	true	and	fair	view,	
in	all	material	respects,	of	the	
company’s	financial	condition	
and	operational	results	and	
are	in	accordance	with	relevant	
accounting	standards.

The Directors are committed to the preparation of financial 
statements that present a balanced and clear assessment 
of the Group’s financial position and prospects. The Audit 
Committee reviews the Company’s half yearly and annual 
financial statements and makes recommendations to the 
Board. The Board requires the Managing Director and the 
Chief Financial Officer to state in writing to the Board that 
the Company’s financial reports present a true and fair view, 
in all material aspects, of the Company’s financial condition 
and operational results and are in accordance with relevant 
accounting standards.

Complying

Principle 4 safeguard integrity in financial reporting

4.2	 	The	Board	should	establish	an	
audit	Committee.

The Company has an Audit Committee. The Audit Committee 
provides a forum for the effective Communication between the 
Board and the Company’s external auditors.

Complying

4.3	 	The	audit	committee	should	be	
structured	so	that	it	consists	of	
only	non-executive	directors;	a	
majority	of	independent	directors,	
and	have	an	independent	
chairperson	who	is	not	the	
chairman	of	the	Board	and	have	
at	least	three	members.

The Audit Committee has three members. Members are 
appointed by the Board and consist of the non-executive 
Directors. The Audit Committee’s chairman is the Chairman of 
the Board.  This element of non compliance is due to the size of 
the board and the experience of non executive directors.

Complying

4.4	 	The	audit	committee	should	have	
a	formal	charter.

The Audit Committee has a formal charter which sets
out the Audit Committee’s role and responsibilities, 
composition, structure and membership requirements.  
The Audit Committee is given the necessary power and 
resources to meet its charter. 

Complying

4.5	 	Provide	the	information	indicated	
in	the	ASX	Guidance	Note	9A	to	
reporting	on	Principle	4.

Details of the names and qualifications of the members of 
the Audit Committee and the number of meetings held and 
attended by each member are contained in the Director’s 
Report of the Annual report.

Complying

5.1	 	Establish	written	policies	and	
procedures	designed	to	ensure	
compliance	with	ASX	Listing	
Rule	disclosure	requirements	
and	to	ensure	accountability	at	
a	senior	management	level	for	
that	compliance.

The Company has a documented policy which has established 
procedures designed to ensure compliance with ASX Listing 
Rule disclosure requirements and to ensure accountability at  
a senior management level for that compliance. The policy can 
be viewed on the Company’s website. The Company Secretary 
is responsible for all communications with the Australian 
Securities Exchange.

Complying

Principle 5 Make timely and balanced disclosure
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6.1	 	Design	and	disclose	a	
communications	strategy	
to	promote	effective	
communication	with	
shareholders	and	encourage	
effective	participation	at		
general	meetings.

The Board informs shareholders of all major
developments affecting the Company’s state of affairs 
as follows:
1  The annual report is distributed to all shareholders, 

including relevant information about the operations of the 
consolidated entity during the year and changes in the  
state of affairs.

2  The half-yearly report to the Australian Securities Exchange 
contains summarised financial information and a review of 
the operations of the consolidated entity during the period.

3  The quarterly activities and working capital reports to the 
Australian Securities Exchange summarises financial and 
operations information for the consolidated entity on a 
quarterly basis.

4  All major announcements to the Australian Securities 
Exchange are posted on the Company’s website.

5  Proposed major changes in the consolidated entity which 
may impact on share ownership rights are submitted to a 
vote of shareholders.

6   The Board encourages full participation of shareholders 
at the Annual General Meeting to ensure a high level of 
accountability and identification with the consolidated 
entity’s strategy and goals. 

Complying

Principle 6 respect the rights of shareholders

6.2	 	Request	the	external	auditor	
to	attend	the	Annual	general	
Meeting	and	be	available	to	
answer	shareholder	questions	
about	the	conduct	of	the	audit	
and	the	preparation	and	content	
of	the	Auditor’s	Report.

The Company’s auditor is required to attend the  
Annual General Meeting.

Complying

7.1	 	The	Board	or	appropriate	board	
committee	should	establish	
policies	on	risk	oversight	and	
management

The Board is responsible for the Company’s system of internal 
controls. The board monitors the operational and financial 
aspects of the Company’s activities and, through the audit 
committee, the Board considers the recommendations and 
advise of external auditors and other external advisers on the 
operational and financial risks that face the company.   
The Board investigates ways of enhancing existing risk 
management strategies, including appropriate segregation  
of duties and the employment and training of suitably qualified 
and experienced personnel.

Complying

Principle 7 recognise and manage risk

corPorAte GoVernAnce PoLIcIes (continued)
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7.2	 	The	chief	executive	officer	
(or	equivalent)	and	the	chief	
financial	officer	should	state	to	
the	Board	in		writing	that	the	
statement	given	regarding	the	
integrity	of	financial	statements	
is	founded	on	a	sound	system	
of	risk	management	and	
internal	compliance	and	control,	
that	is	operating	efficiently	
and	effectively	in	all	material	
aspects.

The Managing Director is required to state to the Board in 
writing that the integrity of the financial statements is founded on 
a sound system of risk management and internal compliance 
and control and that the Company’s risk management and 
internal compliance and control system is operating efficiently 
and effectively in all material respects.

Complying

8.1	 	Disclose	the	process	for	
performance	evaluation	of	the	
Board,	its	committees	and	
individual	and	key	executives

The Company has in place systems designed to fairly review 
and actively encourage enhanced Board and management 
effectiveness. The Nomination Committee takes responsibility 
for evaluating the Board’s performance and the Company’s key 
executives.

Complying

Principle 8 encourage enhanced performance

8.2	 	Disclose	whether	a	performance					
evaluation	for	the	Board	and	its	
members	has	taken	place	in	
the	reporting	period	and	how	it	
was	conducted,	in	the	corporate	
governance	section	of	the	
company’s	annual	report.

The annual performance evaluation for the Board and its 
Members is undertaken on an annual basis in September. No 
material internal deficiencies or issues were identified through 
the process.

Complying

9.1	 	Provide	disclosure	in	relation	to	
the	Company’s	remuneration	
policies	to	enable	investors	to	
understand:

	 1					the	costs	and	benefits		
of	those	policies	and

	 2					the	link	between	
remuneration	paid	to	
directors	and	key	executives	
and	corporate	performance.

Details of the Directors and key senior executives remuneration 
are set out in the Remuneration Report of the Annual report.

Complying

Principle 9 remunerate fairly and responsibly

9.2   The Board should establish a 
remuneration committee.

The Board has in place a Remuneration Committee.  
The Remuneration Committee has two members, who 
are both independent directors.  This Committee is  
responsible for setting the terms and conditions of employment 
for the Managing Directors and the Technical Director.  
The Committee reviews and makes recommendations 
to the Board on the Company’s incentive schemes and 
superannuation arrangements.

Complying
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9.3	 	Clearly	distinguish	the	structure	
of	non-executive	directors’	
remuneration	from	that	of	
executives.

The structure of non-executive Directors’ remuneration is 
distinct from that of executives and is further detailed in the 
Remuneration Report of the Annual Report.

Complying

Principle 9 remunerate fairly and responsibly (cont’d)

9.4	 	Ensure	that	payment	of	equity-
based	executive	remuneration	
is	made	in	accordance	with	
thresholds	set	in	plans	approved	
by	shareholders.

The consolidated entity has an ownership-based remuneration 
scheme (ESOP) for executives. The scheme has shareholder 
approval. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for 
reviewing and monitoring executive performance, remuneration 
and incentive policies and the manner in which they should 
operate, the introduction and operation of share plans (ESOP), 
executive succession planning and development programs.

Complying

9.5	 	Provide	the	information	indicated	
in	the	ASX	Guidance	Note	9A	to	
reporting	on	Principle	9.

The charter setting out the responsibilities of the Remuneration 
Committee has been adopted and a copy of this charter is 
posted on the Company’s website.

Complying

10.1	 	Establish	and	disclose	a	code	
of	conduct	to	guide	compliance	
with	legal	and	other	legitimate	
stakeholders.

The Company has in place a Code of Conduct which sets 
standards for the Board and employees in dealing with the 
Company’s customers, suppliers, shareholders and other 
stakeholders. A copy of this Code of Conduct has been posted 
on the Company’s website.

Complying

Principle 10 recognise the legitimate interests of stakeholders

corPorAte GoVernAnce PoLIcIes (continued)
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Your directors of Peak Resources Limited submit herein the annual financial report of the company for 
the financial year ended 30 June 2007.  In order to comply with the provisions of the Corporations Act 
2001, the Directors’ Report is as follows.

diRectoRs

The names of the company’s directors in office during the year and until the date of this report are as 
below. Directors were in office for this entire period unless otherwise stated.

Paul Price – non executive Chairman, 
B.Juris, LLB, MBA – 

(appointed 31 August 2006)
Mr Paul Price is a corporate lawyer whose experience ranges across both corporate and 
resource matters. He has over 20 years experience as a solicitor and is a partner in the 
legal firm Price Sierakowski.  Paul’s areas of practice include corporations law, ASIC and 
ASX compliance advice, and commercial and corporate due diligence. He has acted 
both nationally and internationally for publicly listed entities as well as for a number of 
large private enterprises.

During the preceding 3 years immediately before the end of the financial year he was a non-executive director 
of Mobilarm Limited (resigned 30 April 2007), Terrace Capital Limited (resigned 1 March 2007), Moto Goldmines 
Australia Limited (resigned 5 July 2005) and Lindian Resources Limited (resigned 7 December 2006).

Mark Maine – Managing director and Company secretary
M.Com, B Bus (Accounting), Grad Dip (B.Law), CPA 

(appointed 31 August 2006)
Mr Mark Maine is the managing director and company secretary. He is a accountant, 
experienced executive and corporate adviser with over 28 years experience including 16 
years experience in the resource industry.  Mr Maine was previously managing director of 
a corporate advisory arm of an Australian stockbroking firm.  He is experienced in public 
company administration, corporate regulation and finance.

During the preceding 3 years immediately before the end of the financial year he is/was a non executive 
director of Australian listed companies Pacrim Energy Limited, Balkans Gold Limited and KLM Group Limited, 
Australasian Resources NL (resigned Feb 2005) and chairman of Newera Uranium Limited   
(resigned March 2007).

Kell nielsen – technical director
BSc(Geology), MAusIMM

(appointed 31 August 2006)
Mr Kell Nielsen is a geologist with over 15 years experience within the Australian mining 
industry.  He has performed in diverse roles from grass roots exploration through to 
large scale mine development.  He has developed strong technical skills and knowledge 
associated with a solid practical background in generation, acquisition and management 
of gold and mineral exploration and development.

rodney Foster – non executive director
BSc(Geology), MAusIMM

(appointed 31 August 2006)
Mr Rodney Foster is a geologist with over 20 years experience in the gold sector and 
mining industry in Western Australia, Victoria and USA.  His experience includes working 
for Pancontinential Mining, Samantha Exploration, North Kalgurli Mines NL and Money 
Mining NL where he played a key role in generating the company’s exploration portfolio 
including the tenements covering the Granny Venn Gold Mine, which is situated within the 
boundaries of Peak’s Menzies Projects.

Mr Foster is currently an executive director of Pacrim Energy Limited and a non executive Latrobe Magnesium NL.

dIrectors’ 
rePort 
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dIrectors’ rePort (continued)

nickolas Money – non executive director
(appointed 31 August 2006)
Mr Nick Money has over 19 years experience in the resources industry sector and for  
the past 12 years has owned and operated a successful drilling contracting business  
based in Kalgoorlie.

RetiRed diRectoRs:

adam sierakowski (resigned 31 August 2006)

Craig McGowan (resigned 31 August 2006)

andrew Parker (resigned 31 August 2006)

coRPoRate stRuctuRe

Peak Resources Limited is a Company limited by shares that is incorporated and domiciled in Australia.  Peak 
Resources Limited has prepared a consolidated report incorporating an entity that was acquired under a 
reverse takeover during the year being a wholly owned subsidiary PRL Limited (together the “Group”).

natuRe oF oPeRations and PRinciPaL activities

The principal activity of the Group during the year was exploration and evaluation of mineral licences. 

During the year Peak Resources Limited acquired all the issued capital of PRL Limited (“PRL”) and changed 
its name from Acquisitor Limited to Peak Resources Limited.  Peak Resources Limited lodged a prospectus 
with the ASIC on 1 September 2006 raising $3.5 million and subsequently listed on ASX on  
29 November 2006.

The acquisition of PRL resulted in the Company taking control of a number of subsidiary companies (Peak 
Hill Gold Mines NL and Redpalm Pty Ltd) and associated exploration assets and interests in agreements to 
acquire exploration assets.  These exploration assets form the basis of the Company’s operations.

ResuLts oF oPeRations

The operating loss after income tax of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2007 was $1,242,703  
(2006: $119,192).

The basic and diluted loss per share for the Group for the year was $0.0375 cents (2006 $0.0196 cents)

No dividend has been paid during the, or is recommended for, the financial year ended 30 June 2007.

siGniFicant cHanGes in tHe state oF aFFaiRs

There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Group during the financial year not otherwise 
dealt with in this report and the financial statements.

siGniFicant events aFteR BaLance date

There were no significant events after the balance sheet date of the Company and the Group prior to the date 
of this report.

FinanciaL Position

The net assets of the Group have increased by $4,737,361 from 30 June 2006 to $4,875,669. This is largely 
the result of capital raisings during the financial year and capitalisation of exploration on mineral tenements.

The Group’s working capital, being current assets less current liabilities, was $2,478,880 at 30 June 2007 
(2006: $18,343).

The September 2006 capital raising, associated with the listing of the Company on ASX, was to provide 
working capital to further explore and evaluate the potential of the Group’s exploration asset portfolio.

The nature of the Group’s activities is such that it may require additional funding to achieve its objectives.   
To date funding has been sourced from the issuance of securities in the Company.

.
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FutuRe deveLoPments

Likely future developments in the operations of the Group are referred to elsewhere in the Annual Report.  
Other than as referred to in this report, further information as to likely developments in the operations of the 
Group and expected results of those operations would, in the opinion of the Directors, be speculative and 
prejudicial to the interests of the Group and its shareholders.

enviRonmentaL ReGuLation and PeRFoRmance

In the course of exploration, the Group carries out sampling and drilling operations that have environmental 
implications both by way of in situ activities and also gaining access to sites.  In such cases, rehabilitation of 
land and the elimination of any dangerous earthworks are a normal requirement.  Apart from this, the Group is 
not subject to any particular or significant environmental regulation.

coRPoRate GoveRnance

In recognising the need for the highest standards of corporate behaviour and accountability the directors of 
Peak Resources Limited support and adhered to the principles of corporate governance.  The company’s 
corporate governance statement and report for the year ended 30 June 2007 is contained in the preceding 
section of this annual report.

sHaRe oPtions

During the year the Company issued the following share options:

details Granted nuMBer

1. September 2009 exercisable at $0.25 each Granted to directors – Aug 2006 2,950,000

2. September 2009 exercisable at $0.25 each Rights issue to shareholders – May 2007 21,975,001

Other than issues in the year, the Company had on issue 1,500,000 options exercisable at $0.25 each and 
expiring on 31 December 2007.

indemniFication oF auditoRs and diRectoRs

During the year no insurance was effected for the directors and officers liability for company and related 
bodies corporate.  No indemnity was implemented in respect of auditors.

PRoceedinGs on BeHaLF oF tHe comPanY

No person has applied to the court under legislation such as section 237 of the Corporations Act of Australia 
for leave to bring proceedings on behalf of the company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the 
company is a party, for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the company for all or part of those 
proceedings.  No proceedings have been brought or intervened in on behalf of the consolidated entity with 
leave of the court under such legislation.

non-audit seRvices

The current auditor has not charged the Group for non audit services during the year.  The Board of Directors 
is satisfied that the general standard for audit independence imposed by the Corporations Act 2001 has been 
met.

auditoR’s indePendence decLaRation

The lead auditor’s independence declaration for the year ended 30 June 2007 has been received and 
immediately follows the Directors Report.

.
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dIrectors’ rePort (continued) 

diRectoRs meetinGs

The number of meetings attended by each Director of the Company during the financial year was:

 Board MeetinGs reMuneration CoMMittee MeetinGs

 number held  number attended number held number attended 
 and entitled  and entitled 
 to attend  to attend

Mr P Price 4 4 1 1
Mr M Maine 4 4 - -
Mr K Nielsen 4 4 - -
Mr R Foster 4 4 1 1
Mr N Money 4 4 1 1
Mr A Sierakowski 1 1 - -
Mr A Parker 1 1 - -
Mr C McGowan 1 1 - -

Note – no Audit Committee Meetings were held during the year.

diRectoRs inteRsts in sHaRes and oPtions

Shares held in Peak Resources Limited
 

 opening Vendor  acquired disposed/ Balance at 
 Jul 06 shares  transferred 30 June 07

Specified Directors     

Mr Paul Price (*) 250,000 - 2,280,431 - 2,530,431
Mr Mark Maine 2,000,000 - 125,000 (125,000) 2,000,000
Mr Kell Nielsen - - 150,000 - 150,000
Mr Rodney Foster 2,350,000 1,010,000 - (125,000) 3,235,000
Mr Nick Money - 875,000 55,000 - 930,000
     
total 4,600,000 1,885,000 2,610,431 (250,000) 8,845,431

(*) includes 500,000 shares held by Trident Capital Ltd as trustee for unrelated party.

Option holdings of specified directors and specified executives:
 September 2009 Options exercisable at $0.25 each

   acquired   Closing 
 opening Granted under rights net Change Balance 
 Jul 06 remeuneration(*) issue other # June 07

Specified Directors         

Mr P Price - 500,000 1,015,125 - 1,515,125
Mr M Maine - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - 2,000,000
Mr K Nielsen - 750,000 57,000 - 807,000
Mr R Foster - 350,000 1,617,500 - 1,967,500
Mr N Money - 350,000 465,000 - 815,000
     
total - 2,950,000 4,154,625 - 7,104,625

 Options are vested and may be exercised at any time.
(*)   Options that were granted to directors were granted on 29 August 2006 and are subject to 24 month escrow restrictions in 

accordance with the ASX Listing Rules.
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directors salary & Fees superannuation other options total % in  
 $ $ $ $ $ options

30 June 2007      

Mr. Paul Price (*) (**) 36,300 - - 10,750 47,050 22.8
Mr. Mark Maine 136,666 - 19,805 21,500 177,971 12.1
Mr. Kell Nielsen 114,622 9,564 - 16,125 140,311 11.5
Mr. Rodney Foster(***) 25,000 - - 7,525 32,525 23.1
Mr. Nick Money (****) (i) 19,801 1,125 - 7,525 28,451 26.4
Mr A Sierakowski(*) (**) - - - - - -
Mr Andrew Parker (**) - - - - - -
Mr Craig McGowan (ii) - - - - - - 

total remuneration: 332,389 10,596 19,805 63,425 426,308 14.9

directors salary & Fees superannuation other options total % in  
 $ $ $ $ $ options

30 June 2007          

Mr. Adam Sierakowski (*) (**) - - - - - -
Mr. Andrew Parker(**) - - - - - -
Mr. Craig McGowan(ii) - - - - - -

total remuneration: - - - - - -

(*) Legal fees paid to Price Sierakowski Lawyers a related party to A Sierakowski and P Price total $100,616 (2006 $4,590).
(**) Consultancy fees paid to Trident Capital Limited a related party to A Parker, A Sierakowski and P Price $21,395 (2006 $31,500).
(***)  Minico Pty Ltd, an entity controlled by Mr Foster was party to agreements which vended exploration assets to the Company in respect 

of which Minico received 1,010,000 ordinary shares ($202,000).
(****)  Mr Nick Money was party to agreements which vended exploration assets to the Company in respect of which Mr N Money received 

875,000 ordinary shares ($175,000).
 (i)  Mr N Money controls and operates a contract drilling company which provided services to the Company during the year for 

which Mondrill received $130,313 (2006 $0). 
 (ii) Consultancy and brokerage fees paid to DJ Carmichael Pty Ltd, a related party of Mr C McGowan total $133,969 (2006: $0).

RemuneRation PoLicY

It is the Company’s objective to provide stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality board by 
remunerating directors fairly and appropriately with reference to relevant employment market conditions.  To 
assist in achieving the objective the Board links the nature and amount of executive directors’ emoluments to 
the Company’s financial and operating performance.  The expected outcome of the Company’s remuneration 
structure is:

• Retention and Motivation of directors and Executives;

•  Performance rewards to allow Directors and Executives to share the rewards of success  
of Peak Resources Limited. 
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dIrectors’ rePort (continued)

Remuneration may include base salary & fees, short term incentives, superannuation contributions and share 
options.  Any equity base remuneration for Directors will only be made with prior approval of shareholders in 
general meeting.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for determining and reviewing compensation arrangements 
for Executive and Non-executive Directors and makes recommendations to the Board for approval.  The 
maximum remuneration of non-executive Directors is the subject of shareholder approval in accordance with 
the Company’s Constitution and the Corporations Act as applicable.  The total level of remuneration of all 
Non-executive Directors is maintained within the maximum limit approved by shareholders.  When setting fees 
and other compensation for Non-executive Directors, the Remuneration Committee may seek independent 
advice and apply Australian benchmarks.  The Remuneration Committee may recommend to the Board 
additional remuneration to Non-Executive Directors called upon to perform extra services or make special 
exertions on behalf of the Company.

There is no scheme to provide retirement benefits, other than statutory superannuation, to Non-executive 
directors.

The Chairman will undertake an assessment of the performance of the individual directors and meet privately 
with each director to discuss this assessment.

The Company has an option based remuneration scheme for Directors and Executives.  In accordance with 
the provisions of the Employee Option Plan approved by shareholders at the general meeting, Executives 
and Directors, with the approval of shareholders, may be granted options to purchase ordinary shares.  The 
number and terms of options granted is at the absolute discretion of the Board, except to the extent that the 
proposed grant is to a Director.  In this instance, shareholder consent must be obtained.  The total number of 
options on issue under the scheme at the time of grant must not exceed 5% of the number of ordinary shares 
on issue.  

The issue of options to Directors and Executives in accordance with the plan is to encourage alignment of 
personal and shareholder interests. 

No options were issued under the scheme during the year.

This Report is made in accordance with a resolution of Directors.

Paul Price Mark Maine
Chairman Managing Director 

Perth, Western Australia Perth, Western Australia   
27th September 2007 27th September 2007
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Income Statement 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 

Notes CONSOLIDATED PARENT 

2007 2006 2007 2006 
    $ $ $ $ 

Continuing Operations 
Revenue 
Finance income 2(a) 139,043 101 138,633 26,302

Exploration expenses  (441,604) - (411,154) -
Consulting expenses  (232,184) - (218,016) (35,252)
Other expenses  (406,540) (119,293) (419,144) (33,500)
Depreciation and amortisation 2(b) (17,261) - (17,261) -
Premium on acquisition of Controlled Entity  (284,157) - - -
Profit/(Loss) before income tax  (1,242,703) (119,192) (926,942) (42,450)
Income tax expense/benefit 4 - - - -
Net profit/(loss) for the year  (1,242,703) (119,192) (926,942) (42,450)
   
Loss per share (cents per share)   
- basic  and diluted for the year 3 (3.75) (1.96)  
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Balance Sheet 
AS AT 30 JUNE 2007 

Notes CONSOLIDATED PARENT 

2007 2006 2007 2006 
    $ $ $ $ 
ASSETS 
Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 5 2,587,096 55,409 2,560,030 854,340
Receivables 6 52,839 8,662 52,836 11,012

Total Current Assets  2,639,935 64,071 2,612,866 865,352

Non-Current Assets 
Property, plant and equipment 7 189,187 - 189,187 -
Deferred exploration and evaluation costs 8 2,207,602 119,965 2,108,447 -
Receivables 6 - - 64,591 -
Other financial assets 9 - - 840,000 -

Total Non-current assets  2,396,789 119,965 3,202,225 -
TOTAL ASSETS   5,036,724 184,036 5,815,091 865,352

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities 
Trade and other payables 10 152,702 45,728 238,227 7,963
Provisions 11 8,353 - 8,353 2,000

Total Current Liabilities  161,055 45,728 246,580 9,963

Total Non-current Liabilities  - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES  161,055 45,728 246,580 9,963
NET ASSETS  4,875,669 138,308 5,568,511 855,389

EQUITY 
Issued capital 12 6,237,564 257,500 6,616,802 976,738
Accumulated losses  (1,361,895) (119,192) (1,048,291) (121,349)

TOTAL EQUITY  4,875,669 138,308 5,568,511 855,389
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Cash Flow Statement
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 

Notes CONSOLIDATED PARENT 
 2007 2006 2007 2006
 $ $ $ $

Cash flows from operating activities 
Payments to suppliers and employees   (509,625) (7,761) (443,474) (64,592)
Other (interest)  139,043 101 138,633 17,929

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating 
activities 5 (370,582) (7,660) (304,841) (46,663)

Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchase of plant and equipment  (206,448) - (206,448) -
Cash paid for exploration & evaluation  (1,119,241) (74,431) (1,109,601) -
Cash acquired on acquisition of 
controlled entity  821,378 -  -

Net cash flows from/(used in) investing 
activities  (504,311) (74,431) (1,316,049) -

Cash flows from financing activities 
Proceeds (net) from issue of securities   3,406,580 137,500 3,326,581 13,500
Other  - -  -

Net cash flows from/(used in) financing 
activities  3,406,580 137,500 3,326,581 13,500

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and 
cash equivalents  2,531,687 55,409 1,705,690 (33,163)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning 
of period  55,409 - 854,340 887,503

Cash and cash equivalents at end of 
period 5 2,587,096 55,409 2,560,030 854,340
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Statement of Changes in Equity 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007  

Ordinary 
Shares 

Share 
Options 

Accum. 
Losses Total Equity 

$ $ $ $
CONSOLIDATED    
At 1 July 2005 - - - -
Loss for the year - - (119,192) (119,192) 
Issue of share capital 237,500 - - 237,500 
Equity based payments 20,000 - - 20,000 

 - 
At 30 June 2006 257,500 - (119,192) 138,308 

At 1 July 2006 257,500 - (119,192) 138,308 
Loss for the year - - (1,242,703) (1,242,703) 
Equity issued 3,580,000 219,750 - 3,799,750 
Equity based payments 1,473,483 - - 1,473,483 
Acquisition of Acquisitor 1,100,000 - - 1,100,000 
Transaction costs (359,075) (34,094) - (393,169) 

At 30 JUNE 2007 6,051,908 185,656 (1,361,895) 4,875,669 

PARENT 
At 1 July 2005 963,238 - (78,899) 884,339 
Issue of share capital 13,500 - - 13,500 
Loss for the year - - (42,450) (42,450) 

At 30 June 2006 976,738 - (121,349) 855,389 
Loss for the year - - (926,942) (926,942) 
Equity issued 3,500,000 219,750 - 3,719,750 
Acquisition of PRL 840,000 - - 840,000 
Equity based payments 1,473,483 - - 1,473,483 
Transaction costs (359,075) (34,094) - (393,169) 

At 30 June 2007 6,431,146 185,656 (1,048,291) 5,568,511 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION 

The financial report of Peak Resources Limited for the year ended 30 June 2007 was authorised for issue in 
accordance with a resolution of the directors on 26 September 2007. 

 Peak Resources Limited is a company limited by shares incorporated in Australia whose shares are publicly 
traded on the Australian stock exchange. 

 The nature of the operation and principal activities of the Group are described in the operational review. 

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a)  Basis of Preparation 

The financial report is a general-purpose financial report, which has been prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and Australian Accounting Standards (AASB’s)(including 
Australian Interpretations adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB)) which include 
Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). This financial report has also 
been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs except where otherwise stated.  

For the purpose of this report, functional and presentation currency adopted for Peak Resources Limited is 
Australian Dollars. 

(b) New Standards and Interpretations Not Yet Adopted

A number of adopted Accounting standards have been amended, the impacts of these amendments are 
assessed to have no direct impact on amounts in the financial report. They are available for early adoption 
at 30 June 2007 but have not been applied in preparing the financial report.  

New or revised requirement Effective for annual 
reporting periods 
beginning/ending on 
or after

More information Impact on group

New and revised standards    

AASB 101 presentation of financial 
statements (revised) 
Removes Australian specific 
requirements for AASB 101, but 
incorporates amendments made on 
the introduction of AASB 7 
surrounding the disclosure of the 
entity’s objectives, policies and 
processes for managing capital. 
Accordingly early adoption may only 
be attractive to entities that are also 
early adopting AASB 7.   

Beginning 1 January 
2007

Mandatory for half-
year ending 30 June 
2007 
Optional for early 
adoption for year 
ending 30 June 2007

AASB 101 is a 
disclosure 
standard, so will 
have no direct 
impact on 
amounts in the 
financial report. 
However 
amendments will 
result in changes 
in disclosures.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

New or revised requirement Effective for annual 
reporting periods 
beginning/ending on 
or after 

More information Impact on group 

AASB 7 financial instruments: 
disclosure, AASB 2005-10 
amendments to Australian 
accounting standards 

AASB 7 is equivalent to IFRS 7 of 
the same name and introduces new 
disclosure requirements in relation to 
financial instruments. AASB 2005-10 
implements various amendments to 
other standards most notably to 
implement IASB amendment to IAS 
1 capital disclosures   

Beginning 1 January 
2007 

Optional for early 
adoption for year 
ending 30 June 
2007, no specific 
disclosure required 
in interim period. 

AASB 7 is a 
disclosure 
standard, so will 
have no direct 
impact on amounts 
in the financial 
report. However 
amendments will 
result in changes 
in disclosures. 

Revised guidance on implementing 
IFRS 4, insurance contracts 

Beginning 1 January 
2007 

Mandatory for half-
year ending 30 June 
2007 
Optional for early 
adoption for year 
ending 30 June 2007 

The group is not 
involved in the 
issuance of 
insurance 
contracts; 
amendments are 
not expected to 
have any impact 
on the financial 
report. 

AASB 123 borrowing costs (revised), 
AASB 2007-6 amendments to 
Australian accounting standards  

Eliminates the option of expensing 
borrowing costs relating to qualifying 
assets, instead requiring 
capitalisation. Transitional provisions 
require prospective application to 
borrowing costs relating to qualifying 
assets for which the commencement 
date for capitalisation is on or after 
application date. An entity may 
however, designate any date before 
the application date and apply the 
standard to borrowing costs relating 
to all qualifying assets for which the 
commencement date for 
capitalisation is on or after that date. 
The amending standard eliminates 
reference to the expensing option in 
various other pronouncements. 

Beginning 1 January 
2009 

Optional for half-year 
ending 30 June 2007 
Optional for early 
adoption for year 
ending 30 June 2007 

Unless the group 
becomes involved 
in a qualifying 
asset in future 
periods; 
amendments are 
not expected to 
have any impact 
on the financial 
report. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

New or revised requirement Effective for annual 
reporting periods 
beginning/ending on or 
after 

More information Impact on group 

AASB 8 operating segments, AASB 
2007-3 amendments to Australian 
accounting standards arising from 
AASB 8 

AASB 8 replaces AASB 114 
segment reporting and introduces 
new ‘management approach’ to 
segment reporting to align IFRS and 
us GAAP. Unlike AASB 114, AASB 
8 only applies to entities which have 
on issue debt or equity securities 
that are traded in a public market (or 
which are in the process of issuing 
any class of instruments in a public 
market). Therefore, reporting entities 
that are out of scope of AASB 8 may 
wish to early adopt this standard to 
avoid segment reporting in their 
financial reports. 

Beginning 1 January 
2009 

Optional for half-year 
ending 30 June 2007 
Optional for early 
adoption for year 
ending 30 June 2007 

AASB 8 is a 
disclosure 
standard, so will 
have no direct 
impact on 
amounts in the 
financial report. 
However 
amendments will 
result in changes 
in disclosures. 

AASB 1049 financial reporting of 
general government sectors by 
governments 

This standard applies to the 
australian government and each 
state and territory government and is 
therefore of limited relevance to 
other entities. 

Beginning 1 January 
2008 

Optional for half-year 
ending 30 June 2007 
Optional for early 
adoption for year 
ending 30 June 2007 

The group is not a 
general 
government 
sector by 
governments; 
amendments are 
not expected to 
have any impact 
on the financial 
report. 

AASB 2007-4 amendments to 
Australian accounting standards 
arising from ED 151 and other 
amendments  
Implements the proposals in ED 151 
Australian additions to, and 
deletions from, IFRS and make 
various other editorial amendments. 
New accounting policy choices are 
introduced and many Australian-
specific disclosures deleted. Early 
adoption of this standard may be 
attractive to many entities. 

Beginning 1 July 2007 Optional for half-year 
ending 30 June 2007 
Optional for early 
adoption for year 
ending 30 June 2007 

The potential 
impact of the 
initial application 
of AASB 2007-4 
has not yet been 
determined. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

New or revised requirement Effective for annual 
reporting periods 
beginning/ending on 
or after 

More information Impact on group 

AASB 2007-5 amendments to 
Australian accounting standard- 
inventories held for distribution by 
not-for-profit entities 
Amends aasb102 inventories to 
require inventories held for 
distribution by not-for-profit entities 
to be measured at cost, adjusted 
when applicable for any loss of 
service potential. 

Beginning 1 July 2007 Optional for half-
year ending 30 
June 2007 
Optional for early 
adoption for year 
ending 30 June 
2007 

The group is not a 
not-for-profit entity; 
amendments are 
not expected to 
have any impact on 
the financial report. 

New interpretations    

Interpretation 10 interim financial 
reporting and impairment 

Equivalent to IFRIC 10 of the same 
name. Concludes that where an 
entity has recognised an impairment 
loss in an interim period in respect of 
goodwill or an investment in either 
an equity instrument or a financial 
asset carried at cost because fair 
value is not reliably determinable, 
that impairment should not be 
reversed in subsequent interim 
financial statements or in annual 
financial statements 

Beginning 1 
November 2006 

Mandatory for half-
year ending 30 
June 2007 

The potential impact 
of the initial 
application of 
interpretation 10 
has not yet been 
determined. 

Interpretation 11 aasb2 group 
treasury share transactions, AASB 
2007-1 amendments to Australian 
accounting standards arising from 
AASB interpretation 11 

Equivalent to IFRIC 11 of the same 
name. Addresses whether certain 
types of share-based payment 
transactions with employees (or 
other supplier of goods and 
services) should be accounted for as 
equity settled or cash settled 
transactions under AASB 2. 

Beginning 1 march 
2007 

Optional for half-
year ending 30 
June 2007 
Optional for early 
adoption for year 
ending 30 June 
2007 

Unless the group 
becomes involved in 
a share based 
payment 
arrangements in 
future periods; 
amendments are 
not expected to 
have any impact on 
the financial report. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

New or revised requirement Effective for annual 
reporting periods 
beginning/ending on 
or after

More information Impact on group

Interpretation 12 service concession 
arrangements, interpretation 4 
determining whether an 
arrangement contains a lease 
(revised), interpretation 129 service 
concession arrangements: 
disclosure (revised), AASB 2007-2 
amendments to Australian standards 
arising from AASB interpretation 12 

Equivalent to IFRIC 12 of the same. 
Addresses the appropriate 
accounting for service concession 
arrangements under which private 
sector entities participate in the 
development, financing, operation 
and maintenance of infrastructure 
for the provision of public services, 
such as transport, water and energy 
facilities. 

Beginning 1 June 
2008 

Optional for half-
year ending 30 
June 2007 
Optional for early 
adoption for year 
ending 30 June 
2007 

The company is not 
involved in service 
concession 
arrangements; 
amendments are 
not expected to 
have any impact on 
the financial report. 

Exposure drafts pending issue as 
revised standards before 31 
December 2007 

   

Ed 139: proposed revision to AASB 
3 – business combination 

Reflects the impact of phase ii of the 
business combinations project by 
IASB to converge with FASB 

Beginning 1 January 
2007 

Mandatory for year 
ending 31 
December 2007 

The potential impact 
of the initial 
application of the 
exposure draft has 
not yet been 
determined. 

Ed 141: proposed revision to AASB 
127 – consolidated and separate 
financial statements 

Main changes proposed are 
consequential changes brought 
about by revision to AASB 3 under 
ED 139. 

Beginning 1 January 
2007 

Mandatory for year 
ending 31 
December 2007 

As above. 

Ed 140: proposed revision to aas137 
– provisions, contingent liabilities 
and contingent assets 

Main changes proposed are 
consequential changes brought 
about by revision to AASB 3 under 
ED 139. 

Beginning 1 January 
2007 

Mandatory for year 
ending 31 
December 2007 

As above. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 

(c) Principles of consolidation

A controlled entity is any entity Peak Resources Limited has the power to control the financial and operating 
policies of so as to obtain benefits from its activities. 

All controlled entities have a June financial year-end. 

All inter-company balances and transactions between entities in the economic entity, including any 
unrealised profits or losses, have been eliminated on consolidation. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have 
been changed where necessary to ensure consistencies with those policies applied by the parent entity. 

Where controlled entities have entered or left the economic entity during the year, their operating results 
have been included / excluded from the date control was obtained or until the date control ceased. 

(d) Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Peak Resources Limited and its 
controlled subsidiaries (‘the Group’). 

Pursuant to an acquisition agreement dated 10 July 2006 Peak Resources (the “legal parent”, formerly 
Acquisitor Limited) acquired all of the issued shares of PRL, by the issue of 8,400,000 ordinary shares in 
Peak Resources. 

After the issue, the former shareholders of PRL controlled 43% of Peak Resources, and also all of the 
directors in the “legal parent” changed as a result of the change of control.  The continuing business is that 
of PRL.  Consequently the acquisition of PRL has been accounted for as a reverse takeover of Peak 
Resources by PRL using the purchase method of accounting.  The continuing financial statements for the 
group include the assets, liabilities and results of PRL and the assets liabilities and results of the legal 
parent, Peak Resources, from the effective date of the business combination.  The consolidated 2006 
results are those of PRL and the continuing financial statements of the parent are those of the “legal parent”.  

(e) Income tax 

The charge for current income tax expenses is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any non-
assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or are substantively 
enacted by the balance sheet date. 

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences 
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. 
No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of an asset or liability, excluding a 
business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or taxable profit or loss. 

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or 
liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it relates to items that may 
be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted directly against equity. 

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits will be 
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. 

(f) Impairment of assets 

At each reporting date, the group reviews the carrying values of its tangible and intangible assets to 
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, 
the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in 
use, is compared to the asset’s carrying value. Any excess of the asset’s carrying value over its recoverable 
amount is expensed to the income statement. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 

Impairment testing is performed annually for goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives. 

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the group estimates the 
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

(g) Property, Plant & Equipment  

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value, less where applicable, any 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

(h) Plant & Equipment 

Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis less depreciation and impairment losses. 

The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by directors to ensure it is not in excess of 
the recoverable amount from these assets.  The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of expected 
net cash flows that will be received from the assets employment and subsequent disposal.  The expected 
net cash flows have been discounted to their present values in determining recoverable amounts. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  All other repairs and maintenance are charged to 
the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred. 

(i) Depreciation 

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including building and capitalised lease assets, but excluding 
freehold land, is depreciated on a straight line basis over their useful lives to the economic entity 
commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use.   

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance 
sheet date.  An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s 
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

(j) Cash 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes deposits at call which are readily convertible to 
cash on hand and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. 

(k) Earnings per share

a. Basic earnings per share
 Basic earning per share is determined by dividing the group operating result after income tax attributable 

to members by weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year, 
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the year. 

b.  Diluted earnings per share
 Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figure used in the determination of basic earnings per share by 

taking into account amounts paid on ordinary shares and any reduction in earnings per share that will 
probably arise from the exercise of options outstanding during the financial year. 

(l) Receivables 

All trade and other debtors are recognised at the amounts receivable as they are due for settlement no more 
than 30 days from date of recognition.  Collectability of trade and other debtors are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis; uncollectible debts are written off. A provision for doubtful debts is raised where some doubt as to 
collection exists.  
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(m) Revenue 

Interest revenue
Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportionate basis that takes into account the effective yield on the 
financial asset. 

(n) Trade and other creditors 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the consolidated entity prior to the 
end of the financial year and which are unpaid. These amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 
days of recognition. 

(o) Goods and Services Tax (GST) 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except 
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office (ATO).  In these 
circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the item of 
the expense. 

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. 

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as a current asset or liability in 
the balance sheet. 

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis.  The GST components of cash 
flows arising from investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are 
classified as operating cash flows. 

(p) Employee Benefits 

Provision is made for the company’s liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by 
employees to balance date. Employee benefits that are expected to be settled within one year have been 
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled, plus related on-costs. Employee 
benefits payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash 
outflows to be made for those benefits.  

(q) Financial Instruments

Debt and equity instruments
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance 
of the contractual arrangement. 

Transaction costs on the issue of equity instruments
Transaction costs arising on the issue of equity instruments are recognised directly in equity as a reduction 
of the proceeds of the equity instruments to which the costs relate.  Transaction costs are the costs that are 
incurred directly in connection with the issue of those equity instruments and which would not have been 
incurred had those instruments not been issued. 

Interest and dividends
Interest and dividends are classified as expenses or as distributions of profit consistent with the balance 
sheet classification of the related debt or equity instruments or component parts of compound instruments. 
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(r) Comparative Figures 

Where appropriate, comparative figures have been adjusted to confirm to changes in presentation for the 
current financial period. 

Comparative figures for 2006 represent those of PRL Limited.  Figures for the parent entity are those of 
Peak Resources Limited (2006 Acquisitor Limited). 

(s) Deferred Exploration and evaluation 

Exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred is accumulated in respect of each identifiable area of 
interest. 

Accumulated costs are only carried forward to the extent that they are expected to be recouped through the 
successful development of the area, or by its sale, or where the activities in the area have not reached a 
stage which permits a reasonable assessment of the existence of economically recoverable reserves. 

Accumulated costs in relation to an abandoned area are written off in full against profit in the year in which 
the decision to abandon is made. 

Accumulated costs are not carried forward in respect of any area of interest unless rights to tenure of that 
area are current. 
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2 REVENUES AND EXPENSES 
 CONSOLIDATED PARENT 

 2007 2006 2007 2006
 $ $ $ $

(a)  Other income 

Finance revenue     
 Bank interest receivable 139,043 101 138,633 26,302 
     
 139,043 101 138,633 26,302 

(b) Other expenses 

Depreciation 17,261 - 17,261 - 
Exploration expenditure written off 441,604 56,672 411,154 - 
Audit fees 27,493  27,493 5,919 
     
 486,358 56,672 455,908 5,919 

(c) Lease payments and other expenses  
 included in income statement 

Included in administrative expenses:  
- operating lease 41,284 - 41,284 -

(f) Employee benefits expense 

Wages and Salaries 112,163 - 112,163 -
Superannuation costs 6,175 - 6,175 -
Expense of share-based payments 63,484 - 63,484 -
 181,822 - 181,822 -

Wages and salaries include allocation of directors’ fees in 2007.  In 2007 the company had 1 operational 
employee and no administrative employees while in 2006 the Company had no employees. 

3 EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net loss for the year attributable to ordinary 
equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.  
Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary 
shareholders (after deducting interest on the convertible redeemable preference shares) by the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year (adjusted for the effects of dilutive options 
and dilutive partly paid contributing shares). 
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3 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 

The following reflects the income and share data used in the total operations basic and dilutive earnings per 
share computations: 

CONSOLIDATED
2007 2006 

$ $ 

Net loss attributable to equity holders from continuing operations (1,242,703) (119,192) 
Net loss attributable to equity holders of parent (1,242,703) (119,192) 
Net loss attributable to ordinary shareholders for diluted earnings per 
share (1,242,703) (119,192) 

Number Number 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted earnings 
per share. 40,598,306 6,066,250 
Effect of dilution on share options. - - 
Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted 
earnings per share. 40,598,306 6,066,250 
Weighted average number of converted, lapsed or cancelled 
potential ordinary shares included in diluted earnings per share. - -

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares since the 
reporting date and before completion of these financial statements. 

4 INCOME TAX 

 Major components of income tax expense for the years ended 30 June 2007 and 2006 are: 

CONSOLIDATED PARENT 
2007 

$
2006 

$
2007 

$
2006 

$
a. The components of tax expense comprise:     
 Current tax  - - - -
 Deferred tax  - - - -
  - - - -

b. The prima facie tax benefit on loss from ordinary 
activities before income tax is reconciled to the 
income tax as follows: 

 Prima facie tax benefit on loss from ordinary 
activities before income tax at 30% (2006: 30%)  (372,811) (35,757) (278,083) (12,735)
Add:      

 Tax effect of:     
 - Current year revenue losses not recognised 914,480 41,518 914,479 11,610
 - Other non-allowable items  86,182 239 935 -
 - Share based payments 19,027 - 19,027 -
 - Other deferred tax balances not recognised - - - 3,605
  646,878 6,000 656,358 2,480
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 Less:      
 Tax effect of:      
 - Exploration and evaluation expenditure 

deductible for income tax purposes not 
recognised 626,534 6,000 632,534 -

 - Other deferred tax balances not recognised 20,344 - 23,824 -
 - Prior period tax adjustment - - - 2,480
 Income tax  - - - -

 The applicable weighted average effective tax 
rates are as follows:  

0% 0% 0% 0%

c. The following deferred tax balances have not 
been recognised: 

 Deferred Tax Assets:  

At 30%: 
 Carry forward revenue losses 929,823 - 914,479 -
 Capital raising costs 96,344 - 96,344 -
 Provisions and accruals 5,666 - 5,666 600
 Other 4,046 - 4,046 8,617
  1,035,879 111,133 1,020,535 9,217

 The tax benefits of the above Deferred Tax Assets 
will only be obtained if: 

 (a  the company derives future assessable income 
of a nature and of an amount sufficient to 
enable the benefits to be utilised; 

 (b  the company continues to comply with the 
conditions for deductibility imposed by law; and 

 (c  no changes in income tax legislation adversely 
affect the company in utilising the benefits. 

 Deferred Tax Liabilities: 
At 30%: 

 Exploration expenditure 649,160 22,625 632,534 -
 Other 233 - 233 -
  649,393 22,625 632,767 -
 The above Deferred Tax Liabilities have not been recognised 

as they have given rise to the carry forward revenue losses 
for which the Deferred Tax Asset has not been recognised. 

No income tax is payable by the Company.  The Directors have considered it prudent not to bring to account 
the future income tax benefit of income tax losses and exploration deductions until it is probable that future 
taxable profits will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised. 
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The benefit of these losses and timing differences will only be obtained if: 

(a) The Group derives future assessable income of a nature and an amount sufficient to enable the benefit 
from the deductions for the loss to be realised; 

(b) the Group continues to comply with the condition of deductibility imposed by Australian law; and 

(c) no changes in tax legislation adversely affect the Company in realising the benefit from the deduction for 
the loss. 

Tax consolidation 
For the purpose of income taxation, the Company and its 100% controlled Australian entities have not 
elected to form a tax consolidated group.  There will be no consequences to the deferred tax assets, 
deferred tax liability unutilised tax losses by not joining the consolidated tax regime. 

5 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 CONSOLIDATED PARENT 

 2007 2006 2007 2006 
 $ $ $ $

Cash at bank and in hand 2,577,096 55,409 2,550,030 854,340
Short term deposits 10,000 - 10,000 -
 2,587,096 55,409 2,560,030 854,340
Cash at bank and in hand earns interest at 
floating rates based on daily bank rates. 

Reconciliation of cash 
For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, 
cash and cash equivalents comprise the following 
at 30 June: 
Cash at bank and in hand 2,601,644 55,409 2,574,578 854,340
Short-term deposits 10,000 - 10,000 -
Outstanding cheques (24,548) - (24,548) -

2,587,096 55,409 2,560,030 854,340

Reconciliation from the net profit after tax to 
the net cash flows from operations 
Net Profit/(Loss) (1,242,703) (119,192) (926,942) (42,450)

Adjustments for: 
Depreciation 17,261 - 17,261 -
Share options expensed 63,484 - 63,484 -
Premium on acquisition w/off 284,157 - - -
Capitalised expenditure w/off 441,604 74,431 411,154 -

Changes in assets and liabilities 
(increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (35,804) (8,627) (41,824) 10,654
(decrease)/increase in loan to associate - - 20,939 -
(decrease)/increase in trade and other payables 101,419 45,728 151,087 (14,867)

Net cash from operating activities (370,582) (7,660) (304,841) (46,663)
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6 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES  
CONSOLIDATED PARENT 

2007 2006 2007 2006 
$ $ $ $ 

CURRENT 

Prepayments 14,657 - 14,657 -
Other 38,182 8,662 38,179 11,012
 52,839 8,662 52,836 11,012
Related party receivables: - - - 
Other related parties - - - 
 52,839 8,662 52,836 11,012

NON CURRENT 

Loans from subsidiaries - - 64,591 -
 - - 64,591 -

7  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Plant and Equipment 

At 1 July 2006, 
Net of accumulated depreciation - - - - 
Additions 206,448 - 206,448 - 
Depreciation charge for the year (17,261) - (17,261) -

-  - 
Net of accumulated depreciation 189,187 - 189,187 - 

8 DEFERRED EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION COSTS 

Exploration Expenditure brought forward 119,965 100,000 - - 
Exploration Expenditure at cost 2,529,241 76,637 2,519,601 -
Written off in the financial statements (441,604) (56,672) (411,154) - 

Deferred Exploration Expenditure Carried 
Forward 2,207,602 119,965 2,108,447 -

9 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Investments in subsidiaries - - 840,000 - 

 - - 840,000 - 
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10 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CURRENT) 

CONSOLIDATED PARENT
2007 2006 2007 2006 

$ $ $ $ 

Trade payables 83,428 40,728 83,423 7,963 
Other payables 31,547 5,000 31,547 2,000 
      
 114,975 45,728 114,970 9,963 
Related party payables:     

Director related trade 14,009 - 14,009 - 
Director related other 23,718 - 23,718 - 
Other related parties - - 85,530 - 

 152,702 45,728 238,227 9,963 

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally 
settled on 60-day terms. Other payables are non-interest 
bearing and have an average term of 6 months. 

 The net of GST payable and GST receivable is remitted to 
the appropriate tax body on a quarterly basis. 

11 PROVISIONS 
CONSOLIDATED PARENT 

2007 2006 2007 2006 
$ $ $ $ 

At 1 July 2006 - - - -
Arising during the year 8,353 - 8,353 -
Utilised - - - -
At 30 June 2007 8,353 - 8,353 -

Current 2007 8,353 - 8,353 -
Non-current 2007 - - - -
 8,353 - 8,353 -

Current 2006 - - - -
Non-current 2006 - - - -
 - - - -
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12 ISSUED CAPITAL 

CONSOLIDATED PARENT 
2007 2006 2007 2006

$ $ $ $
Ordinary Shares 
Issued and fully paid 6,237,564 257,500 6,616,802 976,738

CONSOLIDATED PARENT 
2007 2007 

No. $ No. $
Movement in ordinary shares on the 
issue 
At 1 July 2006 11,000,002 257,500 11,000,002 976,738
Issued for cash consideration ($0.10) - 80,000 - -
Issued on 31 August 2006 in exchange 
for issued share capital of PRL Limited 
(note 25) 8,400,000 1,100,000 8,400,000 840,000
Issued on 16 November 2006 for assets 
($0.20) 7,050,000 1,410,000 7,050,000 1,410,000
Issued on 17 November 2006 for cash 
($0.20)  17,500,000 3,500,000 17,500,000 3,500,000
Equity based payment (options) - 63,483 - 63,483
Option placement  - 219,750 - 219,750
Equity issue costs - (393,169) - (393,169)
At 30 June 2007 43,950,002 6,237,564 43,950,002 6,616,802

 Pursuant to an agreement dated 10 July 2006 PRL has undertaken a reverse takeover of Peak Resources 
Limited (formerly Acquisitor Ltd). As a result of this transaction PRL became a wholly owned subsidiary of 
Peak Resources.  For accounting purposes, the number of shares disclosed reflects that of the legal Parent, 
Peak Resources, whilst the amounts are those of the legal subsidiary PRL. 

 Share options outstanding at the end of the 2007 financial year have the following prices: 

Expire Date Exercise price Number 
   
31 December 2007 25 cents 1,500,000 
30 September 2009 25 cents 24,925,001 

13  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

 Lease commitments 
 The company has committed to an office lease of $42,300 per annum to 1 December 2008. 

Tenement expenditure commitments 
 The Group has a portfolio of tenements located in Western Australia which have a requirement for a certain 

level of expenditure each and every year in addition to annual rental payments for the tenements.  Additional 
detail on the tenements is available in Additional Information in the Annual Report. 

At 30 June 2007 annual expenditure commitments in respect of exploration assets amounted to $714,181. 
(2006 $0).  These mineral commitments are subject to provisions of legislation governing the granting of 
mineral exploration licences.  Commitments may be varied in accordance with the provisions of governing 
regulations. 
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Otherwise, since the last annual report date, there has been no material change to any contingent liabilities 
or contingent asset.

Capital commitments 
At 30 June 2007 the Group had no capital commitments and commitments of $250,000 (2006: $0) in relation 
to its interest in the joint venture operations of which $100,000 remained outstanding at year end. 

Legal claim 
The Group has not received any legal claim during the or since the end of the financial year. 

Guarantees 
Peak Resources Limited has the following contingent liabilities at 30 June 2007: 
- Bonds in respect of mineral tenements $10,000 (2006 $0). 

14 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

(a) Employees share option plan 
The Group has an employee share options plan (ESOP) for the granting of non-transferable options to 
certain directors and senior executives.  No options have been granted pursuant to the ESOP prior to or 
during the year. 

(b) Director Options  

During the year 2,950,000 options were granted to the directors of Peak Resources Limited (2006: 0). 

 Terms and conditions applicable to options include: 
(a) the exercise price of the options is $0.25 per option; 
(b) any options that are not exercised on or before 30 Sept 2009 will lapse; and 
(c) upon exercise, these options will be settled in ordinary shares of Peak Resources Limited. 

 The fair value of the options are estimated at the date of grant using the binomial model. The following table 
gives the assumptions made in determining the fair value of the options granted in the year to 30 June 2007. 

Dividend yield (%)  0% 
Expected volatility (%)  70% 
Risk-free interest rate (%)  5.5% 
Expected life of option (years)  3 years 
Option exercise price ($)  $0.25 
Share price at grant date ($)  $0.10 

 The expected life of the options is based on historical data and is not necessarily indicative of exercise 
patterns that may occur. 

 The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which 
may also not necessarily be the actual outcome. 

 The outstanding balance as at 30 June 2007 is represented by: 
 2,950,000 options over ordinary shares with an exercise price of $0.25 each, exercisable upon meeting 

the above conditions and until 30 June 2012; 
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15 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

The Groups principal financial instruments are cash and short term deposits.  The main purpose of 
these financial instruments is to finance the Groups operations.   

The Group has various other financial instruments such as trade debtors and trade creditors which arise 
directly from its operations. 

It is, and has been throughout the period under review, the Group’s policy that no trading in financial 
instruments shall be undertaken. 

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, liquidity risk and 
credit risk.  The Board reviews and agreed policies for management of each of these risks and they are 
summarised below. 

  Weighted 
Average 
Interest 

Rate 

Floating 
Interest 

Rate 

Non
Interest 
Bearing 

Total 

   $ $ $ 
CONSOLIDATED Note     
2007      
Financial assets      
Cash and cash equivalents 6 5.98% 2,587,096 - 2,587,096 
   2,587,096 - 2,587,096 
2006      
Financial assets      
Cash and cash equivalents 6 5.00% 55,409 - 55,409 
   55,409 - 55,409 
      
PARENT      
2007      
Financial assets      
Cash and cash equivalents 6 5.98% 2,560,030 - 2,560,030 
   2,560,030 - 2,560,030 
2006      
Financial assets      
Cash and cash equivalents 6 5.00% 854,340 - 854,340 
   854,340  854,340 

Interest rate risk 
The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s ability 
to raise debt finance in the future. 

Foreign currency risk 
The Group’s exposure to price risk in minimal at this stage of the operations. 

Commodity price risk 
The Group’s exposure to price risk is minimal at this stage of the operations. 

Credit risk 
The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. 
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With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash and 
cash equivalents, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counter party, with a 
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.  The risk is minimised by 
reviewing term deposit accounts from time to time with approved banks of a sufficient credit rating which 
is AA- and above.  The Company does not place funds on terms longer than 30 days and has the facility 
to place the deposit funds with more than one bank. 

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group. 

Liquidity risk 
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility. 

16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Fair values 
Set out below is a comparison by category of carrying amounts and fair values of all the Group’s 
financial instruments that are carried in the financial statements at other than fair values. 

  Carrying amount Fair value 
  2007 

$
2006 

$
2007 

$
2006 

$
CONSOLIDATED Notes     
Financial assets      
Cash – floating rate interest 5 2,587,096 55,409 2,587,096 55,409 
Trade receivables – current 6 52,839 8,662 52,839 8,662 
Trade receivables – non-current, 
non interest bearing - - - -
      
Total financial assets  2,639,935 64,071 2,639,935 64,071 
      
Financial liabilities
Trade payables – non interest 
bearing 10 (152,702) (45,728) (152,702) (45,728) 
Total payables  (152,702) (45,728) (152,702) (45,728) 
      
Net financial assets  2,487,233 18,343 2,487,233 18,343 
      
PARENT      
      
Financial assets      
Cash – floating rate interest 5 2,560,030 854,340 2,560,030 854,340 
Trade receivables – current 6 52,836 11,012 52,836 11,012 
Trade receivables – non-current, 
non interest bearing - - - -
Inter-company loan receivable – 
non current 64,591 - 64,591 -
      
Total financial assets  2,677,457 865,352 2,677,457 865,352 
      
Financial liabilities      
Trade payables – non interest 
bearing 10 (152,697) (7,963) (152,697) (7,963) 
Inter-company payable 10 (85,530)  (85,530)  
Total payables  (287,227) (7,963) (287,227) (7,963) 
      
Net financial assets  2,439,230 857,389 2,439,230 857,389 
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17  BUSINESS COMBINATION 

Pursuant to an acquisition agreement dated 10 July 2006 Peak Resources (formerly Acquisitor Limited), 
the “legal parent”, acquired all of the issued shares of PRL Limited for a total cost of $1,100,000 which 
comprised an issue of 8,400,000 ordinary shares in Peak Resources. 

After the issue, the former shareholders of PRL controlled 43% of Peak Resources, and also all of the 
directors in the “legal parent” changed as a result of the change of control.  The continuing business is that 
of PRL.  Consequently the acquisition of PRL has been accounted for as a reverse takeover of Peak 
Resources by PRL using the purchase method of accounting with the Consolidated Balance Sheet 
including the historical assets and liabilities of PRL and the assets and liabilities of the “legal parent”, Peak 
Resources, from the effective date of the business combination. 

 The fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired of Peak Resources by PRL were as follows: 

Net assets acquired $

Cash 821,378 

Sundry debtors 8,373 
Payables (13,908) 
Premium on acquisition expensed 284,157 

1,100,000 
Comprised of:  

8,400,000 ordinary shared issued 1,100,000 

18 CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

 The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Peak Resources Limited and the 
subsidiaries listed in the following table. 

Country of 
incorporation 

% Equity interest Investment ($)
 2007 2006 2007 2006 
   
Parent Entity   
Peak Resources Limited Aust  -
   
Controlled Entities 
PRL Limited Aust 100% 0% 840,000 
Peak Hill Gold Mines NL Aust 100% 100% 100,000 100,000
Redpalm Pty Ltd Aust 100% 100% - -

 The following table provides the total amount of transactions which have been entered into with related 
parties for the relevant financial year (for information regarding outstanding balances at year-end, refer to 
note 10 and note 19): 

19 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE 

a. Transactions with related parties in wholly owned group 
The parent entity provided interest free loan funds totalling $85,530 at 30 June 2007 ($2006 $0) to its 
controlled entity, PRL Limited.  Loan balances were eliminated on consolidation. 
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b. Controlling entities 
The ultimate “legal parent” entity in the wholly owned group is PRL Limited. 

c Transactions with other related parties 
 Fees paid to director related entities for services provided have been set out in Note 20. 

20 AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION 

CONSOLIDATED PARENT 
2007 2006 2007 2006 

$ $ $ $ 
Amounts received or due and receivable by PKF 
Australia for: 

• an audit or review of the financial report of the 
entity and any other entity in the consolidated 
entity 25,550 - 25,550 7,350

• other services in relation to the entity and any 
other entity in the consolidated entity  

(a) tax compliance - - - -
(b) assurance related - - - -
(c) special audits required by regulators - - - -

 25,550 25,550 7,350

Amounts received or due and receivable by 
auditors other than PKF Australia for:  

• an audit or review of the financial report of 
subsidiary entities 2,273 - - -

 27,823 - 25,550 7,350

21 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 

There are no matters or circumstances which have arisen since the end of the year which have significantly 
affected or may significantly affect the operations or the state of affairs of the consolidated entity in the future 
financial years. 

22 DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE DISCLOSURES 

 (a) Details of Specified Directors and Specified Executives 

 (i)Specified directors 
 Current
 Mr Paul Price Chairman (non-executive) 
 Mr Mark Maine Director (executive) 
 Mr. Kell Nielsen   Director (executive) 
 Mr. Rodney Foster Director (non-executive) 
 Mr. Nick Money Director (non-executive) 
 Retired 31 August 2006
 Adam Sierakowski Director (non-executive) 
 Andrew Parker Director (non-executive) 
 Craig McGowan Director (non-executive) 
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 (ii)Specified executives 
 There are no Specified Executives.  Mr M Maine and Mr Kell Nielsen may be classified as specified 

executives are included as specified directors. 

 (b) Remuneration of Specified Directors and Specified Executives 

(i) Remuneration Policy 
 It is the Company’s objective to provide stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality board by 

remunerating directors fairly and appropriately with reference to relevant employment market conditions.  To 
assist in achieving the objective the Board links the nature and amount of executive directors’ emoluments 
to the Company’s financial and operating performance.  The expected outcome of the Company’s 
remuneration structure is: 

 Retention and Motivation of directors and Executives; 
 Performance rewards to allow Directors and Executives to share the rewards of success of Peak 

Resources Limited. 

Remuneration may include base salary & fees, short term incentives, superannuation contributions and 
share options.  Any equity base remuneration for Directors will only be made with prior approval of 
shareholders in general meeting. 

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for 
Executive and Non-executive Directors and makes recommendations to the Board for approval.  The 
maximum remuneration of non-executive Directors is the subject of shareholder approval in accordance with 
the Company’s Constitution and the Corporations Act as applicable.  The total level of remuneration of all 
Non-executive Directors is maintained within the maximum limit approved by shareholders.  When setting 
fees and other compensation for Non-executive Directors, the Remuneration Committee may seek 
independent advice and apply Australian benchmarks.  The Remuneration Committee may recommend to 
the Board additional remuneration to Non-Executive Directors called upon to perform extra services or make 
special exertions on behalf of the Company. 

There is no scheme to provide retirement benefits, other than statutory superannuation, to Non-executive 
directors. 

The Chairman will undertake an assessment of the performance of the individual directors and meet 
privately with each director to discuss this assessment. 

The Company has an option based remuneration scheme for Directors and Executives.  In accordance with 
the provisions of the Employee Option Plan approved by shareholders at the general meeting, Executives 
and Directors, with the approval of shareholders, may be granted options to purchase ordinary shares.  The 
number and terms of options granted is at the absolute discretion of the Board, except to the extent that the 
proposed grant is to a Director.  In this instance, shareholder consent must be obtained.  The total number 
of options on issue under the scheme at the time of grant must not exceed 5% of the number of ordinary 
shares on issue.   

The issue of options to Directors and Executives in accordance with the plan is to encourage alignment of 
personal and shareholder interests.  

No options were issued under the scheme during the year. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 

Managing Director’s Contract 
 Mr Mark Maine is engaged under a consultancy agreement between the Company, Mr Maine and RM 

Corporate Pty Ltd (RM Corporate).  The contract is for three years commencing on 29 November 2006.  The 
contract with RM Corporate may be terminated by the Company with cause by giving one month’s notice 
and payment of any applicable statutory termination benefits.  In the event of termination without cause, one 
months notice is required and a termination payment in accordance with the statutory formula which is 
provided under section 200G(3) of the Corporations Act. 

The contract may be terminated by RM Corporate with the provision of three months written notice to the 
Company. 

 (ii)Remuneration of Specified Directors and Specified Executives 

 Mr Maine and Mr Nielsen are listed as Specified Directors are also considered Specified Executives 

Specific Directors 
Salary & 

Fees 
Superann

uation Other Options 

Total 
Remune

ration 

% of 
Remuner
ation in 
Options 

$ $ $ $ $  
30 June 2007       

Mr. Paul Price (*) (**) 36,300 - - 10,750 47,050 22.8
Mr. Mark Maine 136,666 - 19,805 21,500 177,971 12.1
Mr. Kell Nielsen 114,622 10,596 - 16,125 140,311 11.5
Mr. Rodney Foster(***) 25,000 - - 7,525 32,525 23.1
Mr. Nick Money (****) (ii) 19,801 1,125 - 7,525 28,451 26.4
Mr A Sierakowski(*) (**) - - - - - -
Mr Andrew Parker (**) - - - - - -
Mr Craig McGowan (****) - - - - - -

Total Remuneration: 
Specified Directors 322,389 10,596 19,805 63,425 426,308 14.9

30 June 2006 
Mr. A Sierakowski (*) (**) - - - -  -
Mr. Andrew Parker(**) - - - - - -
Mr. Craig McGowan(iii) - - - - - -

Total Remuneration: 
Specified Directors* - - - - - -

(*) Legal fees paid to Price Sierakowski Lawyers a related party to A Sierakowski and P Price total 
$100,616 (2006 $4,590). 

(**) Consultancy fees paid to Trident Capital Limited a related party to A Parker, A Sierakowski and P 
Price $21,395 (2006 $31,500). 

(***) Minico Pty Ltd, an entity controlled by Mr Foster was party to agreements which vended exploration 
assets to the Company in respect of which Minico received 1,010,000 ordinary shares ($202,000). 

(****) Mr Nick Money was party to agreements which vended exploration assets to the Company in respect 
of which Mr N Money received 875,000 ordinary shares ($175,000). 

ii. Mr N Money controls and operates a contract drilling company which provided services to the 
Company during the year for which Mondrill received $130,313 (2006 $0).  

iii. Includes consultancy and brokerage fees paid to DJ Carmichael Pty Ltd, a related party of Mr C 
McGowan.  Total fees paid were $133,969 (2006 $0). 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 

 Remuneration options: Granted and vested during the year 

During the financial year no options were granted as equity compensation benefits under the employee 
share option plan (ESOP). The options granted to Directors during the period were granted pursuant to a 
shareholder resolution and were issued free of charge.  

 Option holdings of specified directors and specified executives 

Opening 
Jul 06

Granted 
Remunera

tion (*) 

Acquired 
under rights 

Issue 
Net Change

Other #

Closing 
Balance 
June 07

      
Specified Directors      
Mr P Price - 500,000 1,015,125 - 1,515,125
Mr M Maine - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - 2,000,000
Mr K Nielsen - 750,000 57,000 - 807,000
Mr R Foster - 350,000 1,617,500 - 1,967,500
Mr N Money - 350,000 465,000 - 815,000
   
Total - 2,950,000 4,154,625 - 7,104,625

(*) All options vested at the time of grant. 

Shareholdings of Specified Directors and Specified Executives 

Opening
Jul 06 

Vendor 
Shares  

Acquired Disposed/ 
Transferred 

Bal at 30 
June 07 

      
Specified Directors   
Mr Paul Price(*) 250,000 - 2,280,431 - 2,530,431 
Mr Mark Maine 2,000,000 - 125,000 (125,000) 2,000,000 
Mr Kell Nielsen - - 150,000 - 150,000 
Mr Rodney Foster 2,350,000 1,010,000 - (125,000) 3,235,000 
Mr Nick Money - 875,000 55,000 - 930,000 
      
Total 4,600,000 1,885,000 2,610,431 (250,000) 8,845,431 

 (*) includes 250,000 shares held by Trident Capital Ltd on bear trust for unrelated party. 

 All equity transactions with specified directors and specified executives other than those arising from the 
exercise of remuneration options have been entered into under terms and conditions no more favourable 
than those the entity would have adopted if dealing at arm’s length. 

Loans to specified directors and specified executives 
There are no loans to Specified Directors 

 Other transactions and balances with specified directors and specified executives 
 Exploration Costs 
 During the year, exploration costs totalling $10,230 (2006: $0) at normal market prices have been made by 

Group companies from DF-EX exploration & Geophysical Services, of which Mr. Rodney Foster’s son is the 
principal. $5,652 was outstanding at 30 June 2007 (2006: $0). 
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Directors’ Declaration 
 In accordance with a resolution of the directors of Peak Resources Limited, I state that: 

 In the opinion of the directors: 

(a) the financial statements and notes of the company and of the consolidated entity are in accordance with 
the Corporations Act 2001, including: 

(i) giving a true and fair view of the company's and consolidated entity's financial position as at 30 June 
2007 and of their performance for the year ended on that date; and 

(ii) complying with Accounting Standards and Corporations Regulations 2001; and 

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and when they 
become due and payable. 

c) This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the Directors in 
accordance with sections 259A of the Corporations Act 2001 for the financial period ending 30 June 
2007. 

 On behalf of the Board 

Paul Price 
Chairman 
Perth, Western Australia 
27th of September 2007 
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF PEAK RESOURCES LIMITED  

Report on the Financial Report 

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Peak Resources Limited and its controlled entities, 
which comprises the balance sheet as at 30 June 2007, and the income statement, statement of changes 
in equity and cash flow statement for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting 
policies, other explanatory notes and the directors’ declaration. 

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report 

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting 
Interpretations) and the Corporations Act 2001. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining 
internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting 
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.  

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply 
with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial report. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.  

Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 
2001.  
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Auditor’s Opinion 

In our opinion the financial report of Peak Resources Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 
2001, including:  

(a) giving a true and fair view of the company and the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 
June 2007 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and  

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting 
Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2001.  

PKF  
Chartered Accountants 

Neil Smith 
Partner 

Dated at Perth, Western Australia on the 27th day of September 2007 
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ASX Additional Information 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 

Additional information required by Australian Securities Exchange Limited and not shown elsewhere 
in this Annual Report is as follows.  The information is made up to 20 September 2007. 

DISTRIBUTION OF ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS AND OPTIONHOLDERS 

 Fully Paid 
Ordinary Shares 

Sept 09 Options 
($0.25) 

Dec 07 Options 
($0.25) 

 No. Of 
Holders 

No. Of 
Shares 

No. Of 
Holders 

No. Of 
Options

No. Of 
Holders 

No. Of 
Options

       
1 – 1,000 1 1 1 1,000 0 0 
1.001 – 5,000 82 363,519 50 171,840 263 835,938 
5,001 – 10,000 53 486,492 74 522,427 31 201,093 
10,000 – 100,000 445 14,976,047 158 5,883,058 8 306,719 
100,001 and over 68 28,123,943 57 18,346,676 1 156,250 
 649 43,950,002  24,925,001 303 1,500,000 

Holders of Non-marketable Parcels 

There are 18 fully paid ordinary shareholders who hold less than a marketable parcel of 3,572 shares. 
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ASX Additional Information (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 

TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS 
The names of the twenty largest holders of ordinary shares are: 

  Ordinary Shares 
  Number of  

Shares Held 
% Held 

1 Wentworth Millswyn Holdings Pty Ltd 2,600,000 5.92 
2 Minico Pty Ltd 2,360,000 5.37 
3 J R V Money 2,215,000 5.04 
4 Trident Capital Pty Ltd 2,000,001 4.55 
5 JC and RA Hocking 1,000,000 2.28 
6 RM Corporate Pty Ltd 1,000,000 2.25 
7 R D Foster 875,000 1.99 
8 M W Maine 875,000 1.99
9 N J P Money 875,000 1.99 
10 Uworra Pastoral Co Pty Ltd 700,000 1.59 
11 Alliance WA Pty Ltd 625,000 1.42 
12 Philco Super Fund 500,000 1.14 
13 C & M Fisher Super Fund 500,000 1.14 
14 Praha Nominees Pty Ltd 460,000 1.05 
15 Brooks Superannuation Fund 450,000 1.02 
16 A & R Pattison Superfund  450,000 1.02 
17 S K Chu 400,000 0.91 
18 Balrun Investments Pty Ltd 350,000 0.80
19 The Lanum Pension Fund 350,000 0.80 
20 Hannan’s Finance Pty Ltd 350,000 0.80 
  18,935,001 43.07 

 Ordinary shares quoted on ASX 27,582,500  
 Ordinary Shares subject to escrow 16,367,502  
 Total ordinary shares 43,950,002  

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS 
The following shareholders are recorded in the Company’s Register of Substantial Shareholders: 

Name No. Of Ordinary 
Shares

%

Minico Pty Ltd 3,235,000 7.35
Wentworth Millswyn Holdings Pty Ltd 2,600,000 5.92 

VOTING RIGHTS 
Ordinary Shares – on a show of hands, every member present in person or by proxy shall have one vote 
and, upon poll, each share shall have one vote. 

FRANKING CREDITS 
The Company has nil franking credits. 
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ASX Additional Information (continued) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007 

TWENTY LARGEST OPTIONHOLDERS 
The names of the twenty largest holders of $0.25 September 2009 Options are: 

  Options 
  Number of  

Shares Held 
% Held 

1 Mr M W Maine 1,437,500 5.77 
2 Minico Pty Ltd 1,180,000 4.73 
3 ANZ Nominees Limited <Cash Income a/c> 1,050,000 4.21 
4 Mr R D Foster 787,000 3.16 
5 Mr N J P Money 787,500 3.16 
6 Elphi Pty Ltd 762,912 3.06 
7 Mr K I Nielsen 750,000 3.01 
8 Trident Capital Pty Ltd 750,000 3.01
9 Blue Saint Pty Ltd 625,000 2.51 
10 Foundation Super Fund Pty Ltd 599,000 2.40 
11 Balrun Investments Pty Ltd 500,000 2.01 
12 Chimera Capital Limited 500,000 2.01 
13 JC & RA Hocking 500,000 2.01
14 RM Corporate Pty Ltd 500,000 2.01
15 E Skazas 500,000 2.01
16 Balrun Investments Pty Ltd 375,000 1.50 
17 Alliance WA Pty Ltd 312,500 1.25 
18 B K Goh 300,000 1.20
19 Hill Winds Pty Ltd 300,000 1.20 
20 JRV Money 264,144 1.06 
  12,780,556 51.28 

 September 2009 Options quoted on ASX 21,975,001  
 September 2009 Options subject to escrow 2,950,000  
 Total ordinary shares 24,925,001  
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